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PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

1.

LIMPOPO TOURISM AGENCY’S GENERAL INFORMATION

REGISTERED NAME:

Limpopo Tourism Agency

REGISTRATION NUMBER (if applicable):

Schedule 3C PFMA

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

Southern Gateway Ext. 4,
N1 Main Road
Polokwane 0700

POSTAL ADDRESS:

P. O. Box 2814
POLOKWANE
0700

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:

+27 15 293 3600

FAX NUMBER:

+27 15 293 3655

EMAIL ADDRESS:

info@golimpopo.com

WEBSITE ADDRESS:

www.golimpopo.com

EXTERNAL AUDITORS:

Auditor General South Africa

BANKERS:

ABSA Bank Limited

COMPANY SECRETARY

T.G Kotsedi
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2.

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

CEO – Chief Executive Officer
CPPP – Community Private Public Partnership
CS – Corporate Services
DMC - Destination Management Company
EAP – Employee Assistance Programme
EEP – Employee Equity Plan
ICT – Information Communication Technology
LEDET – Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and Tourism
LTA – Limpopo Tourism Agency
MICE – Meetings Incentives Conference and Exhibitions (Business Tourism)
MTEF – Medium Term Expenditure Framework
NTSS – National Tourism Sector Strategy
PCB – Provincial Convention Bureau
PCO- Professional Conference Organiser
PPP – Public-Private Partnership
SAT – South African Tourism
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SEZ – Special Economic Zones
SMMEs – Small Medium and Micro Enterprises
STATSSA – Statistics South Africa
UNWTO - The United Nations World Tourism Organisation
VFR – Visiting Friends and Relatives
VIC- Visitor Information Centre
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3. FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON

Photo of Chairperson of the Board

Name: Khiba Andrew Dipela
Title: Chairperson of the Board

Khiba Andrew Dipela
Chairperson of the Board
This report accounts for the entity’s activities for the period 2020/21. Unlike with the previous years, the period under review was uneventful and
was fraught with what was generally characterised by unforeseeable disruptions. True to the character of this Board, no effort was spared to
confront the sudden impediments brought about by the impact of Coronavirus of 2019 colloquially termed COVID-19.
The entity had put ambitious plans in place to deal with the possible disruptions expected of COVID-19. The Board could not ignore the uptake of this
virus and did all in its power to plan with this eventuality in mind. The medical personnel midway through these plans made the world aware of what
has commonly become to be known as the mutating virus. This anomaly has not only become cumbersome but has occasioned the impossibility to
execute the lofty activities the entity has set itself out to achieve. Regardless of the aforementioned, the Board had to remind itself of the inherent
duty bestowed upon it. The Board had to confront the obligation of acting in the best interest of the entity it led. The natural call of fiduciary duty
had to be nestled in, despite the limitations of nature.
The entity as a responsible corporate citizen had to accede to the pressing demands of resources in the country and province. The planning of the
entity borne from the Annual Performance Plan being the strategic document guiding “performance” needed to respond to those demands.
Combating the spread of the Corona Virus became key in the general planning of the Board and it, therefore, meant limitation on the number of the
entity’s activities for the year under review.
Despite the limited resources, the entity managed to attain execution of the following:
-

Reviewed the Board Charter

-

Reviewed all the Board Committee Charters

-

The Board considered and approved the following strategic documents:
•

Budget for the Financial Year 2020/21

•

Annual Performance Plan 2020/21

•

The five-year strategic Plan document

•

Operational Plan 2020/21

•

Procurement Plan 2020/21
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•

The Tourism Recovery Plan

•

Performance Agreement with the Shareholder

The Board has always ensured that it measures its performance against its founding legislation. Section 6(a) of the Limpopo Tourism Act
4/2018 provides amongst others the following:
“That the Agency must market the province as a tourist destination”. In its endeavour to give meaning to this section of the Act, the entity
managed to achieve the following:
•

Limpopo Province has retained its second position on international arrivals whilst the province domestically was the fourth popular Province.

The resolve by the Board is for the province to summit both charts of the arrivals, a feat the Board will not rest until achieved.
LTA continued with collaborations and partnerships with other key stakeholders which contribute to us achieving our mandate of destination
marketing. Key among these include a partnership with three Limpopo based DSTV Championship clubs, namely, Baroka FC, Black Leopards FC and
Tshakhuma Tsha Madzivhandila (TTM) FC. We also partnered with SA Tourism on various aspects such as Summer Campaign, during the third quarter
when the entity enhanced ours with their Summer Different Campaign.
Transformation in the tourism industry remains a critical matter for debate despite significant improvements. The Board will develop mechanisms for
engagement including the tabling of the matter in the envisaged Tourism Lekgotla in the new financial year, 2021/2022. The Board will not be
oblivious to this conundrum but will make the necessary intervention to attempt resolving it.
Although the attainment of the clean audit outcome is still illusive, solace can be drawn from the better prepared Annual Financial Statements
which unlike in the previous period, are currently free from material misstatements. The intervention measures the Board had put in place are
starting to bear fruits. The focus for the year ahead will be in the areas of procurement and non-financial performance. Already the diligently and
well-drafted action plans are in place and will not escape the eye of the Board and the assurance providers in place.
The following policies had been reviewed:


The Finance and Procedure Policy.



The Human Resources Policy.



The delegation of Authority.

The above have been extensively and sufficiently considered with the internal controls providing sufficient assurances although more needs to be
done in the two aforementioned areas. Cognisant to the period the entity finds itself in, the Board has encouraged to accept the migration to digital
processes, through its recently adopted Information Communication Technology Framework aptly titled, “Digital Operating Business Solution”. The
framework is aimed at ensuring that the business and operations of the entity are aligned and integrated for better performance outcomes.
The Board, in safeguarding the interest of all its stakeholders has ensured that the COVID-19 Committee is not only established, but it functions
properly for the welfare of these important components of the entity. The staff occupies a very important space in the whole stakeholder populace
of the entity and the Board will continue to put the staff interests ahead in all its engagements.
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The appearance before the portfolio Committee by the Board has not only motivated the entity but a lot of lessons have been learnt from these
auspicious legislative fora. The major events which are ordinarily the magnets for our arrivals have been largely canned to protect our visitors
against the virus; instead, virtual set-ups were more opted for.
There exists no doubt in the mind of the Board that with the vaccination against COVID-19 on overdrive, we are surely on the horizon of normality.
As the entity, we are ready to dust off our well-prepared plans to unleash into the market.
The good work the Board committees continues to do, the good work by the Auditor-General South Africa, the support and the space provided to do
its work by the esteemed shareholder department all of which have made the work of the entity simpler, will not escape our gratitude and we call
on all of us to a repeat effort in doubling the arrivals into our beautiful Province Limpopo.
I wish to, on behalf of the Board, express my gratitude to the following for having been on our side:
• Shareholder, the Honorable MEC for Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and Tourism (LEDET), Mr Thabo Mokone, Management, and
staff of his department for continued support, guidance, and provision of space for the Board to fulfil its mandate.
• Media, in general, to have given us coverage to expose the Agency’s activities in the country and beyond, thereby promoting our great province,
its people with their diverse cultures, icons, and a myriad of attractions. This will help the tourism sector to grow despite Covid-19.
• The tourism industry leaders and drivers for their continued support and technical advice on various tourism-related matters.
• The unqualified audit opinion in the past financial year, would not have been possible had it not been for the continued cooperation among the
various stakeholders including the Auditor General, our internal auditors, LTA management and staff as well as the Shareholder. Success in this
area calls for intensity in compliance with governance. A clean audit is attainable.

________________________
Khiba Andrew Dipela
Limpopo Tourism Agency
Date: 31/08/2021
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4.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

Photo of CEO
4.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW
Name:
Photo of CEO
Title:
The
Member of the Executive Council (MEC) responsible for Economic Development, Environment and Tourism, the Hon Thabo Mokone (MPL)
Name:
Moses Ngobeni
Title:
The Chairperson of Limpopo Tourism Agency Board, Mr Andrew Dipela and Members of the Board

Acting Chief Executive Officer

It is an honour for me, on behalf of LTA management and staff, to present the 2020/21 Annual Performance Report to you. Part of our responsibility
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expected from this fam trip was to see new Limpopo tour packages developed and to generate publicity about Limpopo as a preferred destination for
leisure and business travellers. The Agency certainly embraced the "new normal" by continuing with this fam trip virtually, a first of its kind in South
Africa, which was hosted in partnership with SATSA. When SATSA approached LTA in 2019 to bring in national and international buyers from within
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their database to explore Limpopo LTA was excited. Seeing the current conditions, it was wise not to stop the interest. At the end of the session,
there were close to seven deals that were concluded or were in progress arising out of this interaction and this was very encouraging.
LTA was nominated to host the 2020 edition of the Girls Friendly Society (GFS) World Council. The event was supposed to be held at the Klein Kariba
Resort in Limpopo, South Africa from the 9th to the 19th July 2020 but the event has been postponed due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. The event
organisers had an online sitting of the council on the 9th of July as the event was postponed to July 2021 due to COVID-19. The online showcase was a
great way to re-assure confirmed delegates and possible new participants of the readiness and investment in safety by the hosts, venue, province
and local organising committee. It was also an opportune time to spark the interest for the event to the delegates, offering a taste of Limpopo
through the programme to inspire anyone in lockdown to get their passports ready to join their fellow members at the council. This was the effort by
LTA and the conference organisers to continue to inspire even more delegates to come to Limpopo for this event.
LTA played host to the Limpopo chapter of Women in Tourism (LimWit) on the 27th of August 2020 in Polokwane for the Women's Month
celebration. Women are an important stakeholder for LTA as a tourism authority in the province, not only because Women in Tourism as a structure
was founded by Government, but because the tourism industry is dominated by women. World Travel Tourism Council (WTTC) confirms that women
form approximately 70% of the workforce in the sector. The sector also employs more people than any sector of the economy. The tourism sector is
undeniably an important pillar of the economy. Invariably the tourism industry would not be where it is to date had it not been for the sterling
contribution of women.
Key among the objectives of Women in Tourism as a body to exist include: to enhance opportunities for women’s participation in the workforce;
promote women entrepreneurship in the tourism industry and raising awareness on key issues regarding women empowerment in tourism, with
particular focus on young women and identify imbalances.
The Recovery Plan was the foundation of the Tourism Month campaign. LTA partnered with the National Department of Tourism and LEDET to
promote tourism during September under the theme, “Tourism and Rural Development”. Tourism Month activities included promotion on digital
platforms, events including a Heritage Cookout at Baleni Cultural Camp, media interviews, FAM trips and tours. These were preceded by the Tourism
month media launch which took place on 04 September 2020 at Kone Boutique Lodge at Ha-Ramantsha in Makhado, Vhembe District. The event was
attended by MEC for LEDET, Mr Thabo Mokone, LTA Board Chairperson Mr Andrew Dipela and SAT CEO, Mr Sisa Ntshona. The launch was used as a
springboard to popularise Ribola Art Route, which some delegates including media and dignitaries participated in.
On the 26th of November 2020, LTA kicked off a very comprehensive Summer Campaign that ran from November 2020 to February 2021 to primarily
convert many visiting friends and relatives (VFRs) into leisure tourists. It was used to position destination Limpopo as a possible replacement for out
of country travel; comprising two elements and had four legs. The two elements are the creative design and the other media buying/booking. Two
agencies were appointed to manage these two aspects of the campaign collaboratively to make the work seamless.
The campaign went live on digital media through influencers, media placements and some radio spots as identified by reach and relevance following
the allocated budget. Planned activities included collaboration with SANParks, (Marakele National Park in Waterberg, Kruger National Park in Mopani
and Vhembe and Mapungubwe National Park and World Heritage Site in Vhembe); South African Tourism’s Summer Different 9/9 Campaign to take
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nine couples from nine provinces to show them nine iconic places in nine provinces; Limpopo Holiday Fair, an exhibition of largely Limpopo-based
tourism products that exhibited their offerings to the public to convert the last-minute leisure traveller into a booking and to expose the destination
offers. This was held at Savannah Mall and was hailed a success.
LTA was part of the interaction with the Minister of Tourism, Ms Mmamoloko Kubayi-Ngubane and her Department in the Province and visited places
such as Palala Boutique Game Lodge, Euphoria Golf and Lifestyle Estate, Leratos and Meloding Guest House in Bela Bela to feel the kasie vibes to
support Limpopo Tourism thus boosting the province’s programme emphasising that Limpopo was open for business. This was also part of the
implementation of our recovery plan as directed by our MEC, Mr Thabo Mokone, whose leadership is highly appreciated during these difficult times.
As part of the Tourism Recovery Plan, the Minister of Tourism again came to Limpopo, targeting tourism establishments in Mopani District at the
event held in Nkowankowa Municipal Hall on the 11th March 2021. The event was hosted by the MEC for LEDET, Mr Thabo Mokone. LTA saw this as an
opportunity for Limpopo to showcase and expose some of the township gems.
LTA and Sunshine Tour launched the 3rd edition of Limpopo Championship, a mega international golf tournament in Limpopo on the 25th March 2021
approximately a month before the actual tournament held on 22-25 April 2021. This event was used to announce the reintroduction of Limpopo Golf
Passport with participating golfers being entitled to play some rounds of golf at participating golf courses.
We wish to thank everybody who contributed to the success of LTA during this difficult period, which saw most events disrupted due to COVID-19.
These include but are not limited to the following:
• Our Board for its visionary leadership, support and guidance.
• Our Executive Management and the entire staff for giving their all during the most difficult times.
• My colleagues, CEOs from other tourism authorities in other Provinces, for their willingness to always share good practices on how best we
could grow tourism and navigate out of frustrations posed by this devastating and invisible enemy (COVID-19).
• My colleagues, CEOs of other state-owned entities in our Province, for their unqualified support.
• Members of the media for continuously covering our events and exposing Limpopo gems to the world.

__________________
M Ngobeni
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Limpopo Tourism Agency
Date: 31/08/2021
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5.

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report are consistent with the annual financial statements audited by the Auditor General
of South Africa.
The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.
The annual report has been prepared per the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.
The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared following the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) standards
applicable to the public entity.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and the judgements made in this information.
The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual
financial statements.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the
financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.

Yours faithfully

___________________
M Ngobeni
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Date: 31/08/2021
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6.

STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

6.1.

Vision
To position Limpopo as a leading tourism destination in Southern Africa.

6.2.

Mission
To promote and offer a sustainable and diverse tourism experience through strategic marketing (destination marketing) and support and
facilitate tourism development programmes, collaborations with stakeholders and sector transformation.

6.3.

Values

6.4.

Core Value

Description

Integrity

Conduct beyond reproach will be deployed by staff and Board.

Respect

Display respect in dealing with all stakeholders, be they colleagues,
other departments, business partners in the tourism industry or Limpopo,
which is best displayed through effective listening and communication, as
well as seeking first to understand them before being understood.

Excellence

The entire LTA organisation shall continually strive for service excellence
delivery towards all our tourists.

Responsibility

All tourism development, management and activities shall deliver on all
areas
of
economic,
social,
environmental
and
personal,
growth sustainability.

Communication

LTA will strive to communicate effectively and efficiently within
and outside the organisation.

Accountability

The obligation of an individual or organisation to account for its actions
(Financials, Performance and Social), accepts responsibility for their
disclosed results in a transparent manner.

Learning Organisation

Culture of continuous improvement by adopting best practices.
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7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
LTA is a Schedule 3C PFMA entity reporting to Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and Tourism (LEDET) and its programmes and activities
are guided by a number of constitutional and legislative mandates as follows:
The Limpopo Tourism Growth Strategy was reviewed during the 2018/2019 financial year to guide tourism growth and development as outlined in
the Limpopo Tourism Act 2018 (Act No. 4 of 2018) and the now repealed Limpopo Tourism Act (No 2 of 2009).
The following Acts are relevant at provincial level:
 Limpopo Tourism Act 2018 (Act No.4 of 2018). Chapter 3. 6 provides functions of the
Agency:
I.

To market the province as a tourist destination;

II.

To market provincial tourism products and facilities;

III.

To develop and implement a marketing strategy for tourism that promotes:


The objects of this Act;and



The provincial tourism sector strategy;

iv.

To advice the MEC on any matter relating to tourism marketing; and

v.

To perform any other function, the MEC may assign or delegate to the Agency.

 Public Finance Management Act 1/1999 (as amended);
 Companies Act 71/2008;
 The white paper on Development and Promotion of Tourism in South Africa, 1996;
 Tourism Act 4/2018; and
 Constitutional Act 108/1996.
7.1 Constitutional Mandate
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108/1996 section 21 of chapter 2 provides for the right to freedom of movement and residence.
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7.2 Policy mandates


Limpopo Tourism Growth Strategy (2018).

Aligned to the NTSS, the Limpopo Tourism Growth Strategy's vision is:
“A rapidly and inclusively growing tourism economy that leverages Limpopo's competitive advantages in nature, culture and heritage, supported
by innovative products and service excellence”
Towards achieving the vision, the Limpopo Tourism Growth Strategy is founded in the implementation of priority actions within the six clusters
embedded in the unique wildlife settings offered in the mega conservation areas of Limpopo. These clusters are:
o Culture and Heritage Cluster;
o Family and Recreation Cluster;
o Sport and Wildlife Cluster;
o Safari and Hunting Cluster;
o Business and Events Cluster; and
o Special Interest Cluster.
Towards implementing the objectives of the strategy, the Agency’s focus was on the marketing and branding initiatives related to each cluster
with the aim to increase international and tourism arrivals, length of stay and spend. Other areas that will also receive attention are:
o
o
o
o


Domestic Marketing Strategy






Tourism market research;
Collaborative partnerships and capacity building;
Domestic tourism growth strategies, and;
Working towards the achievement of the 5 in 5 strategy (5 million additional tourists in 5years nationally).

To increase tourist arrivals through the promotion and marketing of Limpopo, with emphasis ondomestic tourism;
To provide intelligence and tourism information destination; and
To facilitate and give market access support to tourism SMME's.

Public Finance Management Act 1/1999(as amended)
o
To regulate financial management in the national government and provincial governments.
o
To ensure that all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities are managed efficiently and effectively, to provide for responsibilities of
persons entrusted with financial management inthose governments and to provide for matters connected therewith.
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National Tourism Sector Strategy (NTSS).

Overarching goal and five strategic pillars (NTSS).
o Inclusive and Quality Growth of the South African Tourism Economy;
o Effective marketing;
o The visitor experience;
o Destination Management Practices, and;
o Broad Based Benefits.


National Development Plan (NDP)
o
o
o
o

Outcomes: 4 – Decent employment through inclusive economic growth;
Outcomes: 7 – Vibrant, equitable and sustainable rural communities and food security for all;
Outcomes: 10 – Environmental assets and natural resources that are well protected and continually enhanced;
Outcomes: 11 – Creating a better South Africa in a better world.

Limpopo Development Plan (LDP)


Enterprise Development and Incentives
Tourism Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment (B-BBEE) expresses the commitment of all stakeholders in the Tourism Sector to the
empowerment and transformation of the sector and its commitment to working collectively to ensure that the opportunities and benefits of the
Tourism Sector are extended to black South Africans.
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PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

1.

AUDITOR GENERAL'S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA/auditor currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit
conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the management report, with material findings being
reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.
Refer to page 78 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2.

SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS

2.1. Service Delivery Environment
This Annual Performance Report is presented at a difficult moment wherein for a full year the Tourism industry was suffering from the impact of COVID-19. There
were indications that 98% of the businesses in the tourism industry were negatively affected by the various lockdowns that happened in South Africa. There were
about 5% of the businesses that closed between March and December 2020 whilst others converted into other forms of accommodation than those they were
originally designed for.
From the assessment, by October 2020 the tourism business revenue was down by 20% compared to October 2019, 58% of the businesses are not able to service
their debts whereas 42% can cover their costs. Generally, there was a reduction in wages and workforce within the industry, since the introduction of lockdown
due to COVID-19.
When LTA adopted its 5-year strategic plan it was aimed at promoting Limpopo as a leading tourist destination. It had aimed at using partnerships, brand
awareness campaigns, business events (meetings, incentives, conferencing, and exhibitions) to achieve this feat. These were set as part of the goals to achieve
the 5-in-5 strategy set by the government to bring tourists by 2030.
The entity has achieved 70% in overall performance and 81% budget spend in the 2020/21 financial year. The closure of the industry compelled the entity to
employ a digital marketing strategy supported mainly by limited physical activities where possible. This on its own made the entity remain within the minds of
the consumers and promoted Limpopo as a public brand. The visibility of the brand digitally brought significant attention to products and visits to such areas.
This was especially significant in the latter half of the financial year when the tourism space was opened. Whilst significant achievements have been registered
in the core of the entity, destination marketing, the postponement of events and activities due to COVID-19 hampered the total achievement of targets. Other
administrative factors related to the supply chain have had a bearing in the lowering of achievements in other support areas and are part of the intervention
measures that are being implemented.
In areas where there was underperformance, the entity has put in turnaround plans to overcome such. The strategic risks were partially mitigated, those that
were not mitigated to the acceptable level were identified for mitigation in the strategic risks register for 2021/22. The shareholder department has finalized
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Annual Report for 2020/21 Financial Year
Limpopo Tourism Agency
the inclusion of the entity into the memorandum of understanding with the relevant service provider to enable the entity to implement the productivity
programme. It is worth reporting that there is an improvement in the Financial Management division in respect of adherence to SCM policies and implementation
of finance standard operating procedure document, adherence to activity-based budget and regular budget committee meetings to review the spending pattern.
In the destination marketing programme, some of the activities that were not implemented in 2020/21 due to COVID-19 have since been rescheduled for
implementation in the four quarters of the new financial year.
2.2. Organisational environment
The entity’s vacancy rate on funded vacant posts at the end of March 2021 remained at 14%, which was due to the moratorium placed, barring the filling of
vacant positions until the re-configuration of state-owned entities in the province is concluded. Seven (7) funded vacant positions remained vacant including the
two (2) critical positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
The global pandemic of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) was first reported on 31 December 2019 by the World Health Organization following a cluster of
pneumonia cases in Wuhan City, Hubei Province of China. To date, COVID-19 has become a global pandemic and it is continuing to spread across the globe. In
minimising the risk of infection by COVID-19 in the country and the Workplace; the National Coronavirus Command Council (NCCC) and Cabinet have introduced
the Lockdown with levels one to five as a way of delaying the spread of the Covid-19. At the workplace, Covid-19 Health and Safety Committee was established
which oversees the implementation and adherence to health and safety protocols by all employees.
Employees of the entity were provided with the necessary Personal Protective Equipment (PPEs) as part of risk mitigation for Covid-19 in the workplace, and
these include but are not limited to cloth masks, face shields, and hands sanitisers. The entity has introduced basic occupational hygiene practices such as the
washing of hands with soap regularly, hand sanitizing and social distancing. The building was also marked with signs to ensure that employees and visitors to the
workplace adhere to the protocols. During the financial year under review, the entity did not have reported death case/s.
2.3. Key policy developments and legislative changes
There are no key policy developments, but the entity awaits the outcome of the process of reconfiguration on public entities in Limpopo that may have a bearing
on its mandate.
2.4. Progress towards achievement of institutional Impacts and Outcomes
The strategic plan adopted in 2020/21 remains unchanged but has factored in the challenges that may affect the entity in attaining the 2030 goals, especially
those that are related to an increase in the number of tourists visiting Limpopo.
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INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
3.1

Programme 1: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE

The purpose of this program is to provide capacity to the entity to deliver on its mandate
The program is subdivided into three subprograms as follows:
•

Board support: the subprogram aims to ensure efficient Board Leadership of the agency in compliance with relevant legislative prescripts.

•

Monitoring and evaluation: the subprogram aims to ensure effective and efficient monitoring of the performance of the entity.

•

Internal Audit and Risk: the subprogram aims to provide risk management and compliance services.

NB: For the Office of the Board Support, there are no output Indicators set in the planning document.
Institutional Outcomes that Program 1 contributes to:
•

Improved governance, oversight, and intergovernmental coordination

Outcomes, outputs, output indicators, targets and actual achievements table
Under Program 1, the entity achieved 81.25% of the planned annual output targets. The following are the reasons for the underperformance of this program in
the financial year under review:
•

The entity was not able to mitigate to the lowest acceptable levels, three out of the four identified strategic risks.
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Table 2.4.4.1:
This table presents changes made on the originally tabled APP 2020/21 until the date of re-tabling.
Programme: Chief executive Office.
Outcome

Improved governance,
oversight, and
intergovernmental
coordination

Output

Reduce the
incidences
of
corruption

Output
Indicator

Percentage
Reduction in
incidents of
corruption

Audited
Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Not
measured

Audited
Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned Annual
Target

*Actual
Achievement

2020/2021

2020/2021
until the
date of retabling

Not
measured

100% reduction
in incidents of
corruption

100 %

Deviation
from
planned
target to
Actual
Achievement
2020/2021
none

Reasons for
deviations

none

Reasons for
revisions to
the Outputs /
Output
indicators /
Annual
Targets
The annual
target was
changed from
% to number
to meet
SMART
criteria

NB: When the original annual performance plan tabled in March 2020 was revised around July 2020, as per the DPME Circular No. 2 of 2020, the output indicator
on reduction of incidents of corruption was then revised so that the indicator can be SMART compliant.
• The measuring of the performance on the output indicators on percentage was going to be too difficult, whatever the number of reported cases of
corruption was going to be acceptable for as long as they were investigated and reported on. Measuring the performance against a number rather than a
per cent was then seen to be acceptable.
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Table 2.4.4.2:
This table presents information based on the revised APP 2020-21
Programme: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE
Outcome

Improved
governance,
oversight, and
intergovernmental
coordination

Output

Output
Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited
Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual Target

**Actual
Achievement

2020/2021

2020/2021

Deviation from planned
target to Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
deviations

Reduced
incidents of
corruption

Number of
incidents of
corruption
reported

Not measured

Not measured

<5

<5

none

none

Alignment with
Stakeholders

Number of
tourism
stakeholders
engaged

8 stakeholders
engagements
hosted

Not measured

8

8

none

none

Percentage of
organizational
performance
targets
achieved

Four (4)
entity’s
programmes
monitored

78 %

100%

74 %

26%

Reasons for
deviation are
across all the
programmes
under deviation
columns.

Number of
identified
strategic risks
mitigated

4

4

Three (3) risks were not
mitigated.
1. Negative audit
opinion;
2. Ineffective ICT

Review of
supporting
documents for
performance

Improved
organisational
Performance

4

One (1) risk
mitigated
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Programme: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE
Outcome

Output

Output
Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited
Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual Target

**Actual
Achievement

2020/2021

2020/2021

Deviation from planned
target to Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
deviations

systems affecting the
delivery of services

reports and welldefined technical
indicator
descriptions.
2.Develop an SCM
turnaround plan
within the
precepts of the
audit action plan.

3.Decrease in the
number of tourist
arrivals and domestic
trips

Service Providers
have been
appointed and the
process of the
deployment of MS
Office 365(incl.
Dashboard
configuration) and
Board-pack is in
progress.
3.Decrease in the
number of tourists
was identified as
a strategic risk in
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Programme: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE
Outcome

Output

Output
Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited
Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual Target

**Actual
Achievement

2020/2021

2020/2021

Deviation from planned
target to Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
deviations

the 2021/22
financial year
with COVID-19
marketing
recovery plan as
mitigating factor.
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Sub-programme expenditure
Sub- Programme Name

2020/2021
Final
Appropriation
R’000

Actual

2019/2020

Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Final
Appropriation

Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Board Support

1 012

1 052

(40)

Monitoring and Evaluation

1 026

261

765

Communications

60

38

22

Risk & Compliance

80

-

5 760

Compensation of
Employee
Capex
Total

Actual

1 360

787

572

1 256

713

851

781

70

80

-

-

-

5 851

(91)

6 676

6 546

130

56

40

16

53

32

21

7 994

7 242

752

10 909

9 402

1 507

1 969
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3.2. PROGRAMME 2: CORPORATE SERVICES
The purpose of this program is to provide effective and efficient corporate support services in Limpopo Tourism Agency.
The program is subdivided into four subprograms as follows:
• Administration whose aim is to render support and auxiliary services.
• Human Resources: aimed at providing human resources management services.
• Information Communication Technology: which is aimed at providing information technology services.
• Legal Services: This is aimed at providing strategic legal advice and support services.
Outcomes, outputs, output indicators, targets and actual achievements
Program 2 achieved 25% of the planned output indicators and targets during the year under review. The under-performance for the program was as a result of
the productivity improvement modules having been delayed for implementation as the shareholder was busy finalising the inclusion of the entity into the
memorandum of agreement with Productivity SA.
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Table 2.4.4.1:
This table presents changes made on the originally tabled APP 2020/21 until the date of re-tabling.
Programme: Corporate Services
Outcome

Output

Output Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual
Target
2020/2021

A professional,
meritocratic and
ethical public
administration

*Actual
Achievement
2020/2021
until the
date of retabling

Deviation
from
planned
target to
Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
deviations

Reasons for
revisions to
the Outputs /
Output
indicators /
Annual
Targets

Improved
productivity that
impacts on
organisational
results

Planned
Productivity
Improvement
programme
modules
implemented

Not measured

Not measured

100 %

0%

100%

The entity
could not
achieve the set
performance
target due to
the national
lockdown
during Quarter
1

The annual
target was
changed from
% to number to
meet SMART
criteria

Implement
effective ICT
systems to
digitise the
operating
environment

ICT strategic
programmes
implemented

Not measured

Not measured

3

0

3

The indicator
was not a
target for
quarter 1

The number of
the indicators
on the ICT
digitalisation
programme
was changed to
include
programme
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Programme: Corporate Services
Outcome

Output

Output Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual
Target
2020/2021

*Actual
Achievement
2020/2021
until the
date of retabling

Deviation
from
planned
target to
Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
deviations

Reasons for
revisions to
the Outputs /
Output
indicators /
Annual
Targets
necessary to
improve the
use of
technology
during Covid19

NB: The reported performance on output indicators for Program 2 under the above Table does not reflect the performance of the program for the whole financial
year but reflects program performance until the end of the first quarter of the 2020/21 financial year or until the date of re-tabling of the revised APP. Then the
original APP tabled in March 2020 in the legislature was amended due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the operations of the entity in line with the
DPME Circular No. 2 of 2020. As a result, the indicator on the ICT digitalisation programme was changed to include programmes necessary to improve the use of
technology during Covid-19.
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Table 2.4.4.2:
This table presents information based on the revised APP 2020-21
Programme: Corporate Services
Outcome

A
professional,
meritocratic
and ethical
public
administration

Output

Improved
productivity
that impacts
on
organisational
results

Implementation
of ICT systems
to digitise the
operating
environment

Output Indicator

Audited
Actual
Performa
nce
2018/201
9

Audited
Actual
Perform
ance
2019/20
20

Planned
Annual
Target

**Actual
Achieveme
nt

2020/2021

2020/2021

Deviation from
planned target to
Actual Achievement
2020/2021

2

Number of
Productivity
Improvement
programme modules
implemented

Not
Not
measured measured

2

0

Number of ICT
digitalization
programmes
implemented

Not
Not
measured measured

5

3

2

Reasons for deviations

Services required could not be procured on
time as advice from Treasury was that
similar service was already in place with
shareholder department that the entity
should consider shared service with the
department. The process on its own took
longer to conclude.
Licensing of the product purchased could
not be obtained timeously, however, they
have since been received.

27

30

Annual Report for 2020/21 Financial Year
Limpopo Tourism Agency
Sub-programme expenditure
Sub- Programme Economic
Development

2020/2021
Final
Appropriation
R’000

Actual

2019/2020

Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Human Resources
Management

4 240

2 835

1 405

5 468

4 225

1 206

Human Resources
Development

110

107

3

421

106

314

Professional fees

300

23

277

190

103

87

Employee wellness

130

107

23

165

119

46

Information
Communication
Technology

930

625

305

-

-

-

Compensation of
Employees

7 672

9 141

(1 469)

8 982

8 624

358

Capex

2 469

284

2 185

750

29

721

15 851

13 123

2 728

15 975

13 207

2 768

Total
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3.3. PROGRAMME 3: FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
The purpose of this program is to ensure sound financial management and accountability in the entity.
This program is divided into two subprograms as thus:
•
•

Financial Management: the subprogram aims to provide sound financial management and accountability in the entity.
Supply Chain Management: It aims to provide a procurement system, which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost-effective.

Institutional Outcomes that Program 3 contributes to:
• Improved financial and procurement governance.
Outcomes, outputs, output indictors, targets and actual achievements table
The programme targets are, clean audit, 100 per cent budget spend and 30 per cent procurement from a small business owned by blacks, women, disabled and
youth.
Regarding clean audit opinion, the entity is still waiting for the report to be issued at the end of the audit, 31 July 2021.
Budget spend, the entity achieved 81 per cent against 100 per cent target on budget spend. The variance of 19 per cent was realised during the financial year
under review. There is a decline of 10 per cent as compared to 91 per cent achieved in the previous financial year (2019/20).
The entity achieved 100 per cent on the procurement and support for small businesses owned by blacks, women, the disabled and youth.
Program 3 achieved 67% of the annually planned targets for the under review.
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Table 2.4.4.1:
This table presents changes made on the originally tabled APP 2020/21 until the date of re-tabling.
Programme: Financial Management
Outcome

Improved
financial and
procurement
governance

Output

Output
Indicator

Audited
Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual Target

*Actual
Achievement

2020/2021

2020/2021
until the date
of re-tabling

Deviation
Reasons for
from
deviations
planned
target to
Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
revisions to
the Outputs /
Output
indicators /
Annual
Targets

Favourable audit
outcomes

Clean audit
opinion
obtained

Unqualified
audit opinion
obtained

Unqualified
audit opinion
obtained

Clean Audit
Opinion

Unqualified
audit opinion
obtained

None

None

The output
indicator was
not specific.

Percentage (100%)
expenditure against
budget

100%

88%

91%

100%

81%

19%

The country
was put
under
lockdown
due to the
spread of
Covid 19.

The indicator
was not
SMART
compliant

Implementation of
2030 Provincial
Procurement
Strategy

Not measured

Not measured

Not measured

100%

100%

100%

None

the indicator
was not
specific on
the targeted
groups
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NB: The reported performance on output indicators for Program 3 under the above Table does not reflect the performance of the program for the whole financial
year but reflects program performance until the end of the first quarter of the 2020/21 financial year or until the date of re-tabling of the revised APP. Then the
original APP tabled in March 2020 in the legislature was amended due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the operations of the entity in line with the
DPME Circular No. 2 of 2020. As a result, the indicator on the budget for the entity was reduced to meet the covid 19 requirements of the province.
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Table 2.4.4.2:
This table presents information based on the revised APP 2020-21
Outcome

Output

Improved audit
outcomes

Improved
financial and
procurement
governance

Allocated Budget
spent

Implementation
of 2030 Provincial
Procurement
Strategy

Output
Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual Target

*Actual
Achievement

Deviation from
planned target to
Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for deviations

2020/2021

2020/2021 until
the date of retabling

Clean audit
opinion
obtained

Unqualified
audit opinion
obtained

Unqualified
audit opinion
obtained

Clean Audit
Opinion

Still, an
Unqualified audit
opinion was
obtained.

Clean audit opinion

Material findings on
compliance

Percentage

93%

91%

100%

81%

19%

Postponement of events
due to lock down and
non-responsive bids

30%
procurement
spending on
black, youth,
disabled and
women
owned SMMEs
set aside

Not measured

Not measured

100%

100%

None

None
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Sub-programme expenditure
Sub- Programme Name

Financial Management

2020/2021
Final
Appropriation
R’000

Actual

2019/2020

Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Final
Appropriation

Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

4 244

3 250

994

77

45

32

Compensation of
Employees

6 980

5 200

1 780

Capex

1 126

861

265

12 427

9 356

3 071

Supply Chain
Management

Total

Actual

5 296

4 354

942

100

104

(4)

6 487

6 248

240

350

45

305

12 234

10 751

1 483
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3.4. PROGRAMME 4: INTEGRATED DESTINATION MARKETING
The purpose of this program is to market Limpopo as a leading tourism destination to domestic, regional and international markets.
This program is divided into two subprograms as follows:
•
•

Destination Marketing Services: this sub-programme aims to market the province.
Destination information Services: to provide information to tourists and a point of contact.

Institutional Outcomes that Program 4 Contribute to:
Enhanced visitor experience
Growth in tourist arrivals and trips into and intra Limpopo
Outcomes, outputs, output indictors, targets and actual achievements
The IDM programme achieved 70.5% of the annually planned targets in the financial year under review. The significant underperformance is attributed to the fact
that the tourism industry was completely closed for most of the 2020/21 financial year due to the nationwide lockdown restrictions because of COVID-19
pandemic. During the financial year under review, the entity was able to implement marketing programmes based on the Covid 19 marketing recovery plan. This
meant that several programmes had to forego physical contact in favour of Digital Marketing channels. However, with the easing of lockdown measures,
especially towards the end of the financial year under review, the tourism industry has begun to slowly operate since the entity was able to conduct tourism
awareness and capacity building programs in partnership with the Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and Tourism.
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Table 2.4.4.1:
This table presents changes made on the originally tabled APP 2020/21 until the date of re-tabling.
Programme: Integrated Destination Marketing
Sub-programme:
Outcome

Growth in
tourist
arrivals
and
trips into
and intra
Limpopo

Output

Output Indicator

Audited
Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited
Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual
Target

*Actual
Achievement

2020/2021

2020/2021
until the date
of re-tabling

Deviation
from planned
target to
Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
deviations

Reasons for
revisions to the
Outputs /
Output
indicators /
Annual Targets

Increase the
number of
international
arrivals and
domestic trips
to Limpopo

20 000 increase
of international
tourists

not measured

not measured

50 000

Annual target

50 000

The output
indicator was a
quarter 4 target

Target has had to
be reconsidered
due to the
outbreak of
COVID-19 and its
impact on travel

Increase the
number of
international
arrivals and
domestic trips
to Limpopo

224 000 increase
of domestic trips

not measured

not measured

112 000

0

112 000

The output
indicator was a
quarter 4 target

Target has had to
be reconsidered
due to the
outbreak of
COVID -19 and its
impact on travel

Enter into
collaborations
for tourism

Number of
collaborations
made in support
of

not measured

not measured

14

0

14

The output
indicator was a
quarter 2,3,4

Target has had to
be reconsidered
due to the
outbreak of the
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Programme: Integrated Destination Marketing
Sub-programme:
Outcome

Output

Output Indicator

development

developing
tourism at local
government

Facilitate
business events

Number of
business events
hosted in
Limpopo

Audited
Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited
Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual
Target
2020/2021

*Actual
Achievement
2020/2021
until the date
of re-tabling

Deviation
from planned
target to
Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
revisions to the
Outputs /
Output
indicators /
Annual Targets

target

coronavirus and
its impact on
travel

Not measured

Not measured

5

0

5

Target has had to
be reconsidered
due to the
outbreak of the
coronavirus and
its impact on
travel

The target had to
be revised
because of the
outbreak of the
COVID-19
pandemic

Brand awareness
campaigns
implemented

Not Measured

Not measured

4

0

4

The target could
not be achieved
as national
lockdown
regulation
affected the
performance

Target was
revised for
implementation
in the 2nd quarter

Trade marketing
platforms
activated

Not Measured

10

10

Not Measured

10

COVID-19 Budget
adjustment as
well as lockdown

Target was
revised for
implementation

(Facilitated by
LTA)
Improve Limpopo
destination
brand

Reasons for
deviations
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Programme: Integrated Destination Marketing
Sub-programme:
Outcome

Output

Output Indicator

Audited
Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited
Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual
Target
2020/2021

*Actual
Achievement
2020/2021
until the date
of re-tabling

Deviation
from planned
target to
Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
deviations

prevented
movement of
people and
holding of
marketing trade
platforms

Reasons for
revisions to the
Outputs /
Output
indicators /
Annual Targets
in the 4th
quarter

NB: The reported performance does not reflect the performance of the entire financial year under review since the tourism industry was completely shut down
up until the date of re-tabling. Therefore, the entity had to revise the output indicators and targets amid the COVID-19 pandemic as a result of the reduced
budget allocation for the program. During the hard lockdown measures, the entity was forbidden to physically facilitate and hold tourism events.
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Table 2.4.4.2:
This table presents information based on the revised APP 2020-21
Sub-programme:
Outcome

Output

Output Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual
Target

**Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Deviation from
planned target
to Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

2020/2021
Enhanced visitor
experience

New
tourism
experiences
offerings
facilitated

Number of new
tourism experience
offerings facilitated

Not Measured

Not Measured

1

1

None

Research
strategic
plans
developed

Number of Research
strategic plans
developed

Not Measured

Not Measured

1

0

1

Researches
conducted

Number of researches
conducted

Not measured

4

2

2

41

Reasons for
deviations

None

Whilst portions
of the report
were submitted
only the final
version was
given after the
end of the
financial year
2

Due to adjusted
lockdown level 3
imposed In
December 2020,
the event had to
Be moved from
23- 28 February
2021 to 20-25
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Sub-programme:
Outcome

Output

Output Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual
Target

**Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

2020/2021

Deviation from
planned target
to Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Reasons for
deviations

2

April 2021.
A research
company has
been appointed
and is busy
with the
research which
findings will be
made available
at the end of
May 2021.

Growth tourism in

Increased
tourist
information

Number of platforms
utilised to disseminate
tourism information

Improved
destination

Number of brand
awareness campaigns

Not Measured

4

Not Measured

4

8

3

4

4

5

None

Information
supplied for 7
areas was not
verifiable to
the
satisfaction of
the audit team
and was fixed
later.
None
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Sub-programme:
Outcome

Output

Output Indicator

Audited Actual
Performance
2018/2019

Audited Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Planned
Annual
Target

**Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

Deviation from
planned target
to Actual
Achievement
2020/2021

2020/2021
Limpopo

brand
awareness

Reasons for
deviations

implemented
14

12

8

7

1

Some of the
events have
had to be
cancelled due
to the COVID19 lockdown
affecting the
plans put
forward.

Not Measured

4

2

1

1

The bid to host
the IASIA
Conference was
made in 2019 and
was assumed that
since negotiation
with UNISA to
continue hosting
it in 2021 would
count as a fresh
mandate on the
bid to host.

10

1

1

None

None

Number of
collaboration/strategic
partnerships
implemented

Number of Business
Events awareness
programmes
implemented

Number of trade
marketing platforms
activated

2
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Sub-programme expenditure
Sub- Programme Name
IDM

destination marketing
services
Destination information
services and research
Divisional support
Compensation of
Employees
Capex
Total

2020/2021
Final
Appropriation
R’000

Actual

2019/2020

Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

12 400

8 737

3 663

36 355

34 485

1 870

2 300

522

1 778

1 400

529

871

300

312

(12)

738

880

(142)

15 086

14 159

927

13 505

13 270

235

55

18

37

100

30

70

30 141

23 748

6 393

52 098

49 195

2 903
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance

The following measures shall be implemented to deal with the strategic challenges towards the realisation of the institutional outcomes and impact:

Chief Executive Office
•

That the strategic risks which were partially mitigated and those that were not mitigated to the acceptable levels were identified for mitigation in the
strategic risks register for 2021/22.

Corporate Services
•

The Provincial Treasury has given the entity the go-ahead to work with Productivity South Africa a process that will enable the entity to implement the
productivity programme/s.

Financial Management
•
•

Improvement in the SCM policies and full implementation of SCM and finance standard operating procedure document.
Adherence to activity-based budget and regular budget committee meetings to review the spending patterns.

Integrated Destination Marketing
•

Some of the programmes that were not implemented in 2020/21 due to COVID-19 have since been rescheduled accordingly.
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Reporting on the Institutional Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic

The entity did not receive special funding for Covid 19 relief; however, it supported the industry through marketing initiatives made available through its digital
platforms, webinars and bookings.

The entity also assisted the province in the evaluation of applications for the Covid 19 relief fund that was offered by LEDET to the tourism industry.

Table: Progress on Institutional Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic (not applicable)
Programme/
Sub
Programme

Employee
wellness

Intervention

Geographic
location
(Province/
District/local
municipality)
(Where
Possible)

Personal
Protective
Equipment

Limpopo
Province:
Capricorn,
Vhembe
and
Sekhukhune
Districts

No. of
beneficiaries
(Where
Possible)

Disaggregation of
Beneficiaries
(Where Possible)

51

N/A

Total budget
allocation per
intervention
(R’000)

93

Budget spent
per
intervention

76

Contribution
to the Outputs
in the APP
(where
applicable)

N/A

Immediate
outcomes

N/A
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Linking performance with budgets
In assessing the achievement of the outputs in comparison to the planned targets, the public entity must consider the linkages concerning the resources available
to the public entity, in particular the financial resources. Therefore, the following financial information should be presented. The financial information must
agree to the information in the annual financial statements.

Sub- Programme Name

2020/2021
Final
Appropriation
R’000

Actual

2019/2020

Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Personnel costs

35 498

34 350

1 147\8

35 651

34 688

962

Goods & services

11 327

7 469

3 858

18 450

14 666

3 784

882

874

8

669

470

199

15 000

9 571

5 429

35 193

32 595

2 598

3 706

1 204

2 502

1 253

137

1 116

66 413

53 468

12 945

91 216

82 556

8 659

Board expenditure
Integrated Destination
Marketing
Capex
Total
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4.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT

•

Progress made on implementing the capital, investment, and asset management plan.

•

The entity does not have any capital investment.



The asset management plan is well implemented by the entity; asset verification was conducted in line with the asset management policy and
asset management plan.

Infrastructure projects which have been completed in the current year and the progress in comparison to what was planned at the beginning of the year.
Provide reasons for material variances.


•



The entity has completed the Makhado refurbishment during the financial year under review with no material variances.
Infrastructure projects that are currently in progress (list projects) and when are they expected to be completed.
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•

LTA does not have an Infrastructure project in the current financial year.
Progress made on the maintenance of infrastructure.


•

None
Developments relating to the above that are expected to impact the public entity’s current expenditure.


•

None
Details as to how asset holdings have changed over the period under review, including information on disposals, scrapping and loss due to theft.



•

No changes on asset holdings
During asset verification, the entity identified assets that need to be impaired, disposed and written off/scrapping. The write-offs and disposals were
approved by the board.
Measures were taken to ensure that the public entity’s asset register remained up to date during the period under review.


•

Performed monthly reconciliations and oversight by Provincial Treasury.
The current state of the public entity’s capital assets, for example, what percentage is in good, fair, or bad condition.


•

95% of the entity’s assets are in good condition and 5% in fair condition. All assets in bad condition were written off.
Major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under review.



No major maintenance projects.
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•

Progress made in addressing the maintenance backlog during the period under review, for example, has the backlog increased or become smaller? Is the
rate of progress according to plan? If not why, and what measures were taken to keep on track.
 The entity did not have a maintenance backlog during the financial year under review
2020/2021

Infrastructure projects

Budget

Actual

2019/2020
Budget

Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

Refurbishment of
Makhado Office

1 073

824

Total

1 073

824

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

249

200

106

94

249

200

106

94

In March 2020, the entity started with the refurbishment of the Makhado office after it was impaired in the 2019 financial year. The contractor was targeted to
complete the project in October 2020, and it was delayed by four months, completed in February 2021. The delays were because of lockdown due to the COVID-19
pandemic. The handover certificate was presented to management in March 2021. The total cost of the project amounts to R930 000 including the professional fees.
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PART C: GOVERNANCE

1.

INTRODUCTION

The entity has been guided in governance prescripts. All decisions and activities had been backed up by credible sources and well-researched data. The
expectations of the legislative forums did not escape the attention of the Accounting Authority.
The Executive and the Accounting Authorities of the public entity are responsible for corporate governance.
2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
The entity appeared twice before the Portfolio Committee during the year under review.
•

•

09 July 2020 presented the 4th Quarter Performance Report 2019/20 financial year as follows:


65% of Quarter targets achieved;



One Risk Management system was provided;



90% budget spent. One brand tracking system report;



One summer campaign was implemented;



Two strategic partnerships were implemented; and



Two marketing platforms were activated.

28 August 2020 presented the 1st Quarter Performance Report 2020/21 financial year as follows:


Two stakeholder engagements were hosted; and



26% of budget spent.
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The entity could not achieve set performance targets due to the national lockdown during the 1st Quarter.
•

Areas of risk and what implementation plans/actions did the public entity undertake.

3.

EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

Four quarterly reports were submitted to the Executive Authority on the following dates:
•
•
•
•
4.

First-quarter on the 31st July 2020;
Second-quarter on the 30th October 2020;
Third-quarter on the 26th February 2021; and
Fourth-quarter on the 30th April 2021.
THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD

Introduction
The Accounting Authority considered and approved the following documents/submissions:








Annual Performance Report Plan on 18/03/2020;
5 Year Strategic document on 28/07/2020;
Operational Plan on 30/07/2020;
Procurement Plan 30/07/2020;
Financial Policies
 Assets Policy on 28/10/2020;
 Budget Policy on 28/10/2020;
 Travel and Subsistence Policy on 28/10/2020; and
Tourism Recovery Plan on 28/07/2020.

In keeping with its fiduciary duties, the Board has been consistent with its inherent obligation of an oversight role.
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The Board has played its role as more fully detailed hereunder:
Continuously overseen that the Agency:
(a) Markets the province as a tourist destination;
(b) Markets provincial tourism products and facilities;
(c) Develops and implements a marketing strategy for tourism that promotes;
(i) The objects of this Act; and
(ii) The provincial tourism sector strategy.
(d) Advised the MEC on any matter relating to the tourism marketing; and
(e) Performed any other function the MEC may assign or delegate to the Agency.
Board Charter
The Accounting Authority has considered and approved the Board Charter. The Charter details the terms of reference for the Board. In its application, the Board
understands its mandate, the frequency of its meetings, the quorum of the meetings, declaration of interest, the threshold of decision making by the Board
amongst others. The Board Charter has been instrumental in guiding how the Board should conduct its business.
Composition of the Board
Name

Designation (in
terms of the
Public
Entity
Board
structure)

Date
appointed

Khiba Andrew
Dipela

Chairperson

01
December
2019

Date
resigned

Qualifications

• Courses passed:
Private 1 &2
Constitutional Law
African Law
English 1

53

Area of Expertise

Board
Directorships
(List the
entities)

Other Committees
or Task Teams
(e.g:
Audit
committee
/
Ministerial
task
team)

•
•

• Trustee of
Bokamoso
Investment
Trust
• Revolutionary

• Destination

Sports
Human Resources

Marketing (ex officio)

No.
of
Meetings
attended

12
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Name

Designation (in
terms of the
Public
Entity
Board
structure)

Date
appointed

Date
resigned

Qualifications

Area of Expertise

Criminal Law
Interpretation of
Statutes
Family Law
Afrikaans
Political Science 1
&2
• Professional Sports
Management
Graduate Module
• Executive Sports
Management
Programme FIFA
Futuro 3 Graduate
Chikane
Chikane Albert

Deputy
Chairperson
Destination
Marketing
Committee
Chairperson,

01
December
2019

•
• Master in Public
Administration
•
• Post Graduate
Diploma in
Monitoring and
Evaluation
• Advanced
Programme in
Project Management
• B Juris
• Advance Labour Law
Programme

Human Resource
specialist
Strategist

Board
Directorships
(List
the
entities)

Other Committees
or Task Teams
(e.g:
Audit
committee
/
Ministerial
task
team)

Road Solutions
• Rotakuwa
Gaming and
Leisure
• Chairperson of
Dipela Sports
Events
• Dipela Farming

Human Resources
and Remunerations
(ex -officio)

•
•

Contracts
Human Resources
and
Remunerations

No.
of
Meetings
attended

20
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Name

Rembuluwani
Moses Tseli

Designation (in
terms of the
Public
Entity
Board
structure)

Member
Risk and Audit
Committee
Chairperson

Date
appointed

01
December
2019

Date
resigned

Qualifications

Area of Expertise

• Business
Management
Development
Programme
• Executive
Development
Programme
• GCRA Executive
Leadership
Development
Programme
• Strategic Human
Resources
Management
• Certificate in
Corporate
Governance
•
• Postgraduate
Diploma in
•
Management
• Senior Primary
Teacher’s Diploma
• Diploma in Municipal
Governance
• The advanced
certificate in
Governance and

Educationist
Corporate
Governance

Board
Directorships
(List
the
entities)

Other Committees
or Task Teams
(e.g:
Audit
committee
/
Ministerial
task
team)

No.
of
Meetings
attended

• Human Resources

17

and
Remunerations
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Name

Designation (in
terms of the
Public
Entity
Board
structure)

Date
appointed

Madipoane
Refiloe
Moremadi
Mothapo

Member

01
December
2019

Human
Resources and
Remunerations
Committee
Chairperson

Date
resigned

Qualifications

Area of Expertise

Leadership
•
• Baccalaureus
Procurations
•
• Bachelor of Laws
• Postgraduate
Diploma in Drafting
and Interpretation of
Contracts
• Postgraduate
Diploma in
Corporate Law
• Postgraduate
Diploma in Labour
Law
• Postgraduate
Diploma in Political
Transformation and
Governance
• Postgraduate
Certificate in
Mergers and
Acquisitions
• Qualification in
Integrated Human
Settlement
• Qualification in
Property

Traditional
leadership
Legal specialist

Board
Directorships
(List
the
entities)

• Moremadi
Mothapo
Foundation

Other Committees
or Task Teams
(e.g:
Audit
committee
/
Ministerial
task
team)

• Destination

No.
of
Meetings
attended

14

Marketing
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Name

Designation (in
terms of the
Public
Entity
Board
structure)

Mathipe
Orcillia
Moganedi

Member

Keleabetswe
Clementine
Tlouane

Member

Contracts
Committee
Chairperson

Date
appointed

01
December
2019

01
December
2019

Date
resigned

Qualifications

Area of Expertise

Development and
Investment
• Master in Business
Administration
• Management
Development
Programme
• Advanced Labour
Relations
• Master’ Diploma in
Human Resources
• Bachelor of
Education
• Higher Diploma in
Education
• Bachelor of Arts
Social Science
• M ED in
Environmental
Education
• B A in Education
• Bachelor of
Education
• Management
Programme
• Diploma in Computer
Literacy

•
•

Entrepreneurship
Educationist

•
•

Environmentalist
Educationist

Board
Directorships
(List
the
entities)

Other Committees
or Task Teams
(e.g:
Audit
committee
/
Ministerial
task
team)

No.
of
Meetings
attended

• Destination

20

• Destination

10

Marketing
• Human Resources

Shareholder’s
representative
Limpopo
Gambling Board

Marketing

• Contracts
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Name

Designation (in
terms of the
Public
Entity
Board
structure)

Date
appointed

Cllr. Percy
Faneriwa
Mashimbye

Member

01
December
2019

Nomasonto
Ndlovu

Member

Tlou Phillip
Maleka

Acting Chief
Executive
officer / Ex

Date
resigned

01
December
2019

28
October
2020

28 October
2021

31 March
2021

Qualifications

Area of Expertise

•
• Diploma in Human
Resource
•
Management
• National Certificate
on Executive
Leadership Municipal
Development
Programme
• Certificate in
Disaster
Management
• Certificate in Ethics
Management in Local
Government
• Certificate in the
Municipal Executive
Leadership and
Finance Management
Programme
•
• Bachelor of Social
Science
•
• National Diploma in
Personnel
Management

•

Council
Political

Strategic
Marketing and
Communication
Corporate
Governance
Human Resource
Practitioner

Board
Directorships
(List
the
entities)

Other Committees
or Task Teams
(e.g:
Audit
committee
/
Ministerial
task
team)

• SALGA
Representative
• Collins
Chabane
Municipal
Councillor

• Destination

No.
of
Meetings
attended

14

Marketing

• Contracts

8

7
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Name

Designation (in
terms of the
Public
Entity
Board
structure)

Date
appointed

Date
resigned

Qualifications

Area of Expertise

Board
Directorships
(List
the
entities)

Other Committees
or Task Teams
(e.g:
Audit
committee
/
Ministerial
task
team)

No.
of
Meetings
attended

• B Tech Degree
Human Resources
Management

Officio Member

Board and Committees
Committee
Board

No. of meetings held

No. of members

6

7+2

Name of members
KA Dipela (appointed 01/12/2019)
CA Chikane (appointed 01/12/2019)
Kgoshigadi MRM Mothapo (appointed
01/12/2019)
MO Moganedi (appointed 01/12/2019)
RM Tseli (appointed 01/12/2019)
KC Tlouane (appointed 01/12/2019))
Cllr. PF Mashimbye (appointed
01/12/2019)
NC Ndlovu (Chief Executive Officer
appointed 01/12/2019) and resigned
*28/10/2020)
Maleka (Acting Chief Executive Officer
appointed 28/10/2020 and resigned
31/03/2021)
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Committee

No. of meetings held

No. of members

Risk and Audit

7

4

Contracts

4

4

Human Resources and Remunerations

4

4

Destination Marketing

4

5

Name of members
MP Maila (acting Chief Financial Officer
01/04/2020)
RM Tseli (appointed 01/12/2019)
F Malaza (appointed 05/05/201730/11/2020 and reappointed 01 December
2020)
TC Modipane (appointed 05/05/201730/11/2020 and reappointed 01 December
2020)
JN Mpjane (appointed 05/05/201730/11/2020 and reappointed 01 December
2020)
MO Moganedi (appointed 01/12/2019)
CA Chikane (appointed 01/12/2019)
KC Tlouane (appointed 01/12/2019)
Cllr. PF Mashimbye (appointed
01/12/2019)
Kgoshigadi MRM Mothapo (appointed
01/12/2019)
CA Chikane (appointed 01/12/2019)
MO Moganedi (appointed 01/12/2019)
RM Tseli (appointed 01/12/2019)
CA Chikane (appointed 01/12/2019)
Kgoshigadi MRM Mothapo (appointed
01/12/2019)
MO Moganedi (appointed 01/12/2019)
KC Tlouane (appointed 01/12/2019)
Cllr. PF Mashimbye (appointed
01/12/2019)
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Remuneration of Board members
•

The Board is remunerated in terms of the 2019 Remunerations Levels; Service Benefit Packages for Office Bearers of Certain Statutory and Other
Institutions Category C1 as determined by the National Treasury Central Evaluation Committee.

•

Cllr. Mashimbye P.F is a representative of the South African Local Government and Ms Tlouane K.C comes from the Executive Authority.

Non – Executive Members:
Name

Remuneration

Other allowance

Other re-imbursements

Total

KA Dipela (Chairperson)

273 893

-

78 817

352 710

CA Chikane (Deputy Chairperson)

156 720

-

47 019

203 739

MO Moganedi

109 989

-

6 335

116 324

RM Tseli

115 252

-

9 105

124 357

MRM Mothapo (Kgoshigadi)

96 803

-

2 033

98 836

PF Mashimbye (Cllr)

-

-

5 943

5 943

KC Tlouane (Shareholder
representative)

-

-

-

-

149 252

901 909

Total

752 657

Risk and Audit Committee:
Name
F Malaza (Risk and Audit)
TC Modipane (Risk and Audit)
JN Mpjane (Risk and Audit)
Total

Remuneration
33 305
42 058
42 058

Other allowance
1 350
1350
1 350

Other re-imbursements
4 462
-

Total
34 655
47 870
43 408

117 421

4 050

4 462

125 933

870 078

4 050

153 714

1 027 842

G

Grand Total
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5.

RISK MANAGEMENT

•

The entity had an approved risk management policy and strategy in place for the year under review.

•

The risk assessments for the year were conducted. The main aim of conducting the assessment was to determine the effectiveness of the risk management
strategy and to identify new and emerging risks. The strategic risk register was developed from the assessment.

•

The entity has in place a Risk and Audit Committee whose role is to advise management on the overall system of risk management, especially the
mitigation of unacceptable levels of risk.

•

The Risk and Audit Committee’s role is to further advise the entity on risk management and independent monitoring of the effectiveness of the system of
risk management.

•

The entity noted some progress in the management of risks, this has transmitted into some improvements in the entity’s performance.

6.

INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The entity does not have an internal control unit in place. The responsibilities of the unit are performed by various divisions including amongst others, financial
management, supply chain management and risk and compliance.
The Committee has ensured that there was a system of internal controls designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are safeguarded against
liabilities and that the working capital is efficiently managed. It can be confirmed that the system of internal control and risk management applied by Limpopo
Tourism Agency during the financial year was effective, efficient and transparent.
Utilization of governance instruments viz; PFMA1/1999, the King IV Report just to mention just a few. The work of the Internal and External audit has
sufficiently covered the following areas:
•
•

A risk-based audit action plan was developed,
The Risk Register was continuously monitored to ensure action plans are implemented for mitigation of risks.

7.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

•

The work of the Internal Audit has been effective. The work of the Internal Audit has had a positive impact in responding to the internal control
deficiencies and contributed to the improved internal control systems within LTA, a fear positively expressed by the External Auditors.
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•

The internal audit plan indicates the audit project for the year was approved.

•

The contract of the Internal Auditors (R Kalidass and Associates) came to an end in October 2020. The internal audit service was then advertised with new
internal auditors (SABnT) appointed. In March 2021, the auditors were able to carry on with the implementation of the already approved annual plan.
The table below provides detailed information on the Risk and Audit Committee members

Name

Mr RM Tseli

Ms F Malaza

Mr TC Modipane

Qualifications
• Postgraduate Diploma in
Management
• Senior Primary Teacher’s
Diploma
• Diploma in Municipal
Governance
The advanced certificate in
Governance and Leadership
• Chartered Accountant
• Bachelor of Honours in
Accounting Science
• Bachelor of Accounting Science
• Certificate of Theory in
Accounting
• Chartered Accountant
• Bachelor of Commerce Honours
Accounting
• Bachelor of Commerce
Accounting
• Higher Diploma in Auditing

Internal or
external

If the internal,
position in the
public entity

Date appointed

Date Resigned

No. of Meetings
attended

External

N/A

01 December
2019

N/A

7

05 May 2017

30 November
2020

7

30 November
2020

7

External

01 December
2020

External

05 May 2017
01 December
2020
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Name

Qualifications

Internal
external

or

If the internal,
position in the
public entity

Date appointed

Date Resigned

No. of Meetings
attended

05 May 2017

30 November
2020

7

• Certificate in Financial
Modelling

• Certificate in Business
•
Mr JN Mpjane

8.

•
•
•

Development Systems
Certificate in Effective Audit
Committees
Chartered Accountant
Honours Bachelor of Accounting
Bachelor of Accounting Science

External

01 December
2020

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The founding legislation of the entity is the Limpopo Tourism Act 4/2018 with the repeal of the Limpopo Tourism Act 2/2009. The Objectives of the entity are
well articulated in section 2 both acts. It should however, be emphasised that the entity has many approved policies in place to ensure compliance with
applicable pieces of legislation.
9.

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

•

The entity has in place a fraud prevention policy that guides in dealing with any allegation of fraud and corruption. The entity had an indicator in the
approved APP to a quarterly report on fraud and corruption.

•

The entity has in place the whistleblowing policy which guides on reporting any fraud and corruption allegations, the policy further ensures the protection
of whistle-blowers.

•

The fraud and allegations are reported on the PSC fraud hotline which is managed at the National Department level by the Public Service Commission
Department.
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10.

MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The LTA policies require that all employees including those charged with Supply Chain Management responsibilities, disclose all their interests. Where potential
for conflict is identified, an employee concerned is recused from discharging any responsibility that would give rise to such conflict of interest.

11.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The LTA Code of Conduct has been formulated to foster and maintain trust of the employees of the entity. The entity’s Code of Conduct ensures that all
employees and the Board adhere to appropriate standards of conduct to maintain and enhance the reputation of the entity. LTA has disciplinary rules that shape
the acceptable standard of conduct required for employees and its stakeholders.

12.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Although health and safety are valued in every facet of operations, the term health and safety relates primarily to occupational health safety and environmental
concerns. Workplace Safety is not only about employees whose health is at stake, but also employers who seek to both maintain a productive healthy workforce
and avoid penalties or legal liability (vicarious liability) as well as the public at large which can be affected by environmental hazards from major workplace
incidents.
13. COMPANY SECRETARY
The role and responsibility of the Company Secretary is outlined in Section 88(1) - (2) of the Companies Act 71/2008 and can be summarised as follows –
To provide the directors of the entity collectively and individually with guidance as to their duties, responsibilities and powers
•

Consistently made the directors aware of any law relevant to or affecting the entity.

•

Reported to the entity’s Board failures on the part of the entity and Directors to comply with the founding legislation and related legislations of the entity.

•

Ensured that Minutes of all Shareholders' meetings, Board Meetings and the Meetings of any Committees of the directors, or the entity’s Risk and Audit
Committee, were properly recorded following the Act
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•

14.

Ensured that a copy of the entity’s Annual Financial Statements was sent, following the Act, to the Auditor General, Provincial Treasury and Shareholder
Department.
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Given the COVID-19 environment that the country finds itself under, the entity only managed to create awareness about the importance of sharing and working
for the communities by posting the Nelson Mandela Day banner on the website and social media platforms. This was a way of encouraging employees and the
public about caring for those less fortunate by doing community work in line with our iconic former and first democratic President, Nelson Mandela. Over the
years the entity would partner with some community-based organisations to assist by engaging in community work as part of the 67 minutes as part of the
international Nelson Mandela Day.
15.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Committee is pleased to present the report for the financial year ended 31 March 2021.
Risk and Audit Committee responsibilities
The Risk and Audit Committee has performed its responsibilities arising from sections 51(1)(a)(ii) and 76(4)(d) of the PFMA and Regulation 27.1 (of the Treasury
Regulations).
During its work, the Risk and Audit Committee has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference using the Charter. The Committee has ensured that it
regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.
Effectiveness of internal controls
The Committee has ensured that there was a system of internal controls designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are safeguarded against
liabilities and that the working capital is efficiently managed. It can be confirmed that the system of internal control and risk management applied by Limpopo
Tourism Agency during the financial year was effective, efficient and transparent.
Utilization of governance instruments viz; PFMA1/1999, the King IV Report just to mention just a few. The work of the Internal and External audit has
sufficiently covered the following areas:



A risk-based audit action plan was developed, and
The Risk Register was continuously monitored to ensure action plans are implemented for mitigation of risks.
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Internal Audit
The work of the internal Audit has been effective. The work of the Internal Audit has had a positive impact in responding to the internal control deficiencies and
contributed to the improved internal control systems within LTA, a fear positively expressed by the external Auditors.
Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements
The Risk and Audit Committee had time to do the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ensured compilation of the Annual Financial Statements by management;
Reviewed and discussed the Annual Financial Statements to be included in the annual report;
Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;
Reviewed the Limpopo Tourism Agency’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
Reviewed the External Auditors’ management report and responses thereof, and put in place the audit action plan to respond to the findings; and
The entity’s Annual Financial Statements were found to be free of material misstatements.

The Committee is expressing satisfaction with the tabling of the report.
We therefore concur and accept the Auditor General of South Africa’s report on the annual financial statements.
The integrity of the Annual Report
The Risk and Audit Committee is satisfied with the integrity of the Annual Report on the performance of the Agency. The Risk and Audit Committee, with the
assistance of the Internal Audit, will continue to monitor the processes and procedures in place to ensure improvement and consistency in the quality and
integrity of performance information.
The focus on performance information is and will remain a priority area until better audit outcomes are obtained in this area.
The Effectiveness of Internal Control
Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based on the risk assessments conducted in the public entity revealed certain weaknesses, which
were then raised with the public entity.
•

The following audit projects as appearing in the approved audit plan were conducted during the year by R Kalidass and Associates:
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ICT vulnerability assessment, Covid 19, 2019/20 AFS review, quarter 1 and 2 performance audits.
SABnT
Quarter 3 and 4 performance Audit, SCM, Review of 2020/21 AFS.
The following were areas of concern:



Performance information; and
Supply chain management

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report to the Executive Authority
•
•
•
•

First-quarter on the 31st July 2020,
Second-quarter on the 30th October 2020,
Third-quarter on the 26th February 2021,
Fourth-quarter on the 30th April 2021.

Evaluation of Financial Statements
We have reviewed the annual financial statements prepared by the public entity.
Auditor General
We have reviewed the public entity’s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the prior year and we are satisfied that the matters have been adequately
resolved.
The Risk and Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the external auditor on the annual financial statements and believes that the audited
annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the auditor.

65

68

Annual Report for 2020/21 Financial Year
Limpopo Tourism Agency

Auditor General of South Africa
The Committee had encouraged regular Audit Steering Committee meetings between management and auditors. The Audit report outcome is an unqualified audit
opinion, which is accepted by the Risk and Audit committee. As indicated, the Committee still believes that the entity has the potential to achieve a clean audit
outcome in the future.
Conclusion
The entity/management is encouraged to invest in a well-documented Audit Action Plan to address the findings of the current audit.
My appreciation goes to my colleagues, members of this Committee who have always been available each time called upon to serve.
The cooperation from management under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer and the positive attitude by the staff is appreciated.
The support from the Board is as well acknowledged with thanks.
___________________
R.M Tseli
Risk and Audit Committee Chairperson
Limpopo Tourism Agency
31 August 2021

16.

B-BBEE COMPLIANCE PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The following table has been completed following the compliance to the B-BBEE requirements of the B-BBEE Act of 2013 and as determined by the B-BBEE
Compliance Performance Information from the Department of Trade and Industry.
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Has the Department / Public Entity applied any relevant Code of Good Practice (B-BBEE Certificate Levels 1 – 8) with regards to the following:

Discussion
Response
Criteria

(include a discussion on your response and indicate what measures have been taken to
comply)

Yes / No

Determining qualification criteria for the issuing of licences,
concessions or other authorisations in respect of economic
activity in terms of any law?

No

Developing and implementing a preferential procurement
policy?

Yes

Determining qualification criteria for the sale of state-owned
enterprises?

No

Developing criteria for entering into partnerships with the
private sector?

No

Determining criteria for the awarding of incentives, grants
and investment schemes in support of Broad-Based Black
Economic Empowerment?

No
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PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
1. INTRODUCTION
Two senior officials (Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer) tendered their resignations, but the positions could not be filled due to the moratorium
on the appointment of staff owing to the finalization of the reconfiguration of the state-owned entities.
Ten internship candidates were appointed for twenty-four months in line with the Skills Development Act to gain practical work experience in the various fields
within the entity.
2. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
Personnel cost by programme
Programme
Office of the CEO
Corporate Services
Financial Management
Integrated Destination Marketing

Total Expenditure for
the entity (R)
7
13
9
23

Personnel Expenditure
(R)

242 374
430 575
047 643
747 750

5
9
5
14

Personnel exp. as a %
of total exp. (R)

850 761
141 210
199 975
158 529

No. of employees

81%
68%
57%
60%

6
17
8
20

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R)
975 127
537 718
649 997
707 926

Personnel cost by salary band
Level
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled

Personnel Expenditure (R)
1
4
14
8
3
1

% of personnel exp. to total
personnel cost (R)

172 462
457 947
537 975
281 704
562 548
006 621

3%
13%
42%
24%
10%
3%

No. of employees
#
3
14
17
11
6

Average personnel cost
per employee (R)
1 172 462
1 485 982
1 038 427
487 159
323 868
167 770
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Stipend, Provident Fund and
1 331 218
Salary Admin
TOTAL
34 350 475
#1 employee resigned on 31 October 2020

4%

26 102

100%

51

673 539

Performance rewards
Programme

Performance rewards

Top Management
Senior Management
Professional qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL
Training Costs
Directorate/ Business Unit

Personnel Expenditure (R’000)

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
Personnel Expenditure
(R)

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
Training
Expenditure
(R’000)

Training Expenditure as a
% of Personnel Cost.

% of performance rewards to total
personnel cost (R’000)
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
No. of employees
trained

Office of the CEO

5 850 761

0%

Corporate Services

9 141 210

0%

2

0%

2

Financial Management
Integrated Destination Marketing

5 199 975

0%

14 158 529

Avg training
cost per
employee
0 000
0 000
0 000
0 000

No payments were made for the training programmes
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Employment and vacancies
Programme
Office of the CEO
Corporate Services
Financial Management
Integrated Destination Marketing
Programme
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL
Employment changes
Salary Band
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
Total

2019/2020
No. of
Employees
7
17
9
20

2020/2021
Approved
Posts
10
22
15
30

2020/2021
No. of Employees

2019/2020
No. of
Employees
1

2020/2021
Approved
Posts
1

2020/2021
No. of Employees

4
14
17
11
6
53

6
17
8
20

4
28
23
13
8
77

Employment at beginning of
the period
1
4
14
17
11
6
53

2020/2021
Vacancies

% of vacancies
4
5
7
10

40%
23%
47%
33%

2020/2021
Vacancies

% of vacancies

-

1

0%

3
14
17
11
6
51

1
14
6
2
2
26

25%
50%
26%
15%
25%
34%

Appointment
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Terminations
1
1
0
0
0
0
2

Employment at end
of the period
0
3
14
17
11
6
51
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Reasons for staff leaving
Reason
Death
Resignation
Dismissal
Retirement
Ill health
Expiry of contract
Other
Total

Number

% of total no. of staff leaving
0%
4%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
4%

2

2

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action
Nature of disciplinary Action
Verbal Warning
Written Warning
Final Written warning
Dismissal
Other

Number
0
1
0
0
0

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status
Levels

MALE

Top Management
Senior Management
Professional qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

AFRICAN
Current
0
3
11
7
5
0
26

Target
0
2
11
7
5
2
27

COLOURED
Current
0
0
1
0
0
0
1

Target
0
0
1
1
0
0
2

INDIAN
Current
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Target
0
0
1
1
0
0
2

WHITE
Current
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Target
0
0
1
1
0
0
2
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Levels

FEMALE

Top Management
Senior Management
Professional qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

AFRICAN
Current
0
0
2
10
6
6
24

Levels

Top Management
Senior Management
Professional qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
TOTAL

Target
1
1
11
10
5
3
31

Disabled Staff
Male
Current
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

COLOURED
Current
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Target
0
0
1
1
1
1
4

INDIAN
Current
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Target
0
0
1
1
1
1
4

Female
Current

Target
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

WHITE
Current
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Target
0
1
1
1
1
1
5

Target
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
1
1
1
1
0
4
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This is the audit report as issued by the external auditor.

REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR

1

7. We draw attention to note 28 in the financial statements, which deals with going concern
and specifically the possible effects of the future implications of covid-19 on the public
entity’s future prospects, performance and cash flows. The entity’s budget for the next
financial year was reduced by R34,961 million. The reduction in the budget will have a
negative impact on the entity’s planned marketing activities such as partnerships, marketing
and trade platforms and business events.

Subsequent events

6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of matter

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

4. I am independent of the entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the and separate financial statements section of my report.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Limpopo Tourism Agency as at 31 March 2021, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Statements of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of
the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Limpopo Tourism Agency set out on pages
89 to 126, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021,
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow
statement and statement of comparison of budget information with actual information for
the year then ended, as well as notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Opinion

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Report of the auditor-general to the Limpopo Provincial Legislature on
Limpopo Tourism Agency

1.
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13. My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information, which must be based on the entity’s approved performance planning
documents. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the
performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine
whether the actions taken by the entity enabled service delivery. My procedures do not
extend to any disclosures or assertions relating to the extent of achievements in the current
year or planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that
may be included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings
do not extend to these matters.

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information against predetermined objectives for selected
programmes presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to
identify material findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

Introduction and scope

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
included in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the appropriate
governance structure either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

8. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting accounting authority is responsible
for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the
accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements
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37 – 44

Pages in the annual
performance report

Increased domestic tourists by 224 000
Number of business events awareness programmes implemented




3

19. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 21 to 45 for information on the
achievement of planned targets for the year and management’s explanations provided for
the under/over achievement of targets. This information should be considered in the context
of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information in paragraph 17 of this report.

Achievement of planned targets

18. I draw attention to the matters below.

Other matters

An increase of 20 000 international tourists



17. The method of calculation for achieving the planned indicator was not clearly defined and
related systems and processes were not adequate to enable consistent measurement and
reliable reporting of performance against the predetermined indicator definitions for the
indicators listed below.

Programme 4: Integrated destination marketing

16. The material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the performance information of the
selected programmes are as follows:

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved
performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine whether the
indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of
the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and
complete.

Programme 4: Integrated destination marketing

Programmes

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programmes
presented in the entity’s annual performance report for the year ended 31 March 2021:
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26. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or
my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

25. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance
information and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

24. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, which includes the directors’ report
and the audit committee’s report. The other information does not include the financial
statements, the auditor’s report and those selected programmes presented in the annual
performance report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.

Other information

23. Some contracts were awarded to bidders based on pre-qualification criteria that differed
from those stipulated in the original invitation for bidding, in contravention of the 2017
Preferential Procurement Regulation 4(1) and 4(2).

Procurement and contract management

22. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:

21. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a
responsibility to report material findings on the entity’s compliance with specific matters in
key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to
express assurance.

Introduction and scope

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

20. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing.
These material misstatements were in the reported performance information of programme
4: Intergrated destination marketing. As management subsequently corrected only some of
the misstatements, I raised material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information. Those that were not corrected are reported above.

Adjustment of material misstatements
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30. Risk management strategy and oversight bodies were in place however, it was not
sufficient to prevent and detect the non-compliance and errors in the financial information.

29. The accounting authority did not adequately review the annual performance report before
submission for audit which resulted in a number of material misstatements that were
identified.

28. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to
the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the the findings on
the performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this
report.

Internal control deficiencies

27. I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When I do
receive and read this information, if I conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
I am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request
that the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may have
to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it
is corrected this will not be necessary.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the
procedures performed on reported performance information for selected programmes and on
the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

4. I also provide the accounting authority with a statement that I have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my
independence and, where applicable, actions
6 taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

Communication with those charged with governance

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

 conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the entity to continue as a going
concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in
my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements about the material
uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial
statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease
operating as a going concern

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting authority

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this
auditor’s report, I also:

Financial statements

1.

Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

Limpopo Tourism Agency
Annual financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021
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KA Dipela (Chairperson)
31 May 2021

The annual financial statements set out on page 4, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by
the board members on 31 May 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the entity's annual financial statements.

The Board is responsible for the financial affairs of the entity.

The entity is wholly dependent on the Limpopo Department of Economic Development Environment and Tourism (LEDET) for
continued funding of operations. The annual financial statements are prepared on the basis that the entity is a going concern
and that the entity has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the entity.

The Board has reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2022 and, in the light of this review and the
current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.

The Board is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or deficit.

The Board acknowledges that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Board to meet these
responsibilities, the Board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring that the entity’s business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is
on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risks across the entity. While operating risks cannot be
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that the appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and
ethical behaviour are applied and managed within the predetermined procedures and constraints.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The Board is required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records and
are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this
report. It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of
the entity as at the end of the financial year 2020/21 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the said period. The
external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements and were given
unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

Board Members' Responsibilities and Approval
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Review of activities

Going concern

Subsequent events

Accounting policies

Board Members

Secretary

Business address

The secretary of the entity is TG Kotsedi of:

6.

** Cllr- Councillor

* Chairperson of Risk and Audit Committee

Name
KA Dipela (Chairperson)
CA Chikane (Deputy Chairperson)
MO Moganedi
*RM Tseli
MRM Mothapo (Kgoshigadi)
KC Tlouane
** PF Mashimbye (Cllr)

Southern Gateway Ext 4
N1 Main Road
Polokwane
0699

The Board members of the entity during the financial year under review are as follows:

5.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board as the prescribed framework by National
Treasury.

4.

The board is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year.

3.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations of the entity, to such an extent, the Limpopo
Department of Economic Development Environment and Tourism (LEDET) has confirmed the funding for Limpopo Tourism
Agency for the foreseeable future and a letter to that effect has been received.

2.

The entity is engaged in integrated destination marketing of the Limpopo Province. The operating results and state of affairs
of the entity are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and do not in our opinion require any further
comment.

Main business and operations

1.

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Board Members' Report
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Board member fees

Risk and Audit Committee
F Malaza
TC Modipane
JN Mpjane

Non-executive members
KA Dipela (Chairperson)
CA Chikane (Deputy Chairperson)
MO Moganedi
RM Tseli
MRM Mothapo (Kgoshigadi)
PF Mashimbye (Cllr)

Economic entity

7.

1 350
1 350
1 350
4 050
4 050

117 421
870 078

-

752 657

33 305
42 058
42 058

-

Cellphone/
Data
allowance

273 893
156 720
109 989
115 252
96 803
-

Board fee
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153 714

4 462

4 462
-

149 252

78 817
47 019
6 335
9 105
2 033
5 943

1 027 842

125 933

34 655
47 870
43 408

901 909

352 710
203 739
116 324
124 357
98 836
5 943

669 232

269 426

106 638
86 463
76 325

399 806

113 102
88 792
65 629
65 811
51 407
15 065

Reimbursive Total package Total package
allowance
2021
2020

Limpopo Tourism Agency
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Board Members' Report
Senior Management
Salary or fee Allowance

Chief Executive Officer
NC Ndlovu
TP Maleka (Acting CEO)

Chief Financial Officer
MN Lion
MP Maila (Acting CFO)

Senior Management
TG Kotsedi (Company Secretary)
TP Maleka ( Chief Corporate
Services Officer)
NK Ramakuela (Chief Marketing
Officer)
Dr M Musitha (Acting CMO)

Contributions 13th Cheques/ Leave gratuity Acting
performance
allowance
bonus

Total package Total package
2021
2020

843 464
-

70 000
-

46 611
-

79 306
-

133 081
-

64 075

1 172 462
64 075

1 732 103
-

843 464

70 000

46 611

79 306

133 081

64 075

1 236 537

1 732 103

15 620
-

-

297
-

22 566
-

119 753
-

72 884

158 236
72 884

1 355 725
-

15 620

-

297

22 566

119 753

72 884

231 120

1 355 725

1 253 178
1 096 347

55 800
96 000

66 872
108 302

72 319
68 361

-

-

1 448 169
1 369 010

1 448 169
1 393 657

985 317

240 000

62 712

67 697

-

-

1 355 726

507 592

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

55 488

3 334 842

391 800

237 886

208 377

-

-

4 172 905

3 404 906

4 193 926

461 800

284 794

310 249

252 834

136 959

5 640 562

6 492 734

88

89

11 915 614

269 774
11 645 840

Reserves
Revaluation reserve
Accumulated surplus
Total Net Assets

11 915 614

Net Assets

1 496 044

965 130

11 791 209

303 496
11 487 713

11 791 209

6 969 467

268 431
1 227 613

341 000
624 130

5 473 423

10 501 881

11 467 011

7

9

2 717 337
139 475
2 598 461
18 150

18 760 676

4 896 295
176 358
5 429 228
-

23 382 625

2 552 538

16 208 138

20 089 027
3 293 598

131 112
3 180 651
880 675
12 015 700

2020
Restated*

110 413
3 103 572
1 557 067
15 317 975

2021

Total Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefits-Long service awards
Leave liabilities

Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions
Revenue payable to Provincial Revenue Fund (PRF)
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Employee benefits-Long service awards

Liabilities
10
11
8
9

3

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total Assets

6

4
5

Note(s)

Current Assets
Inventories
Receivables
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets

Figures in Rand

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2021
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Surplus for the year

Operating surplus
Write offs/ scrapping of assets
Gain/(Loss) on foreign exchange

Total expenditure

18

16
17

14
15

(205 415)
7 018 295

(52 925)
6 866 014

7 223 710
(207 164)
1 749

(88 085 782)

(34 625 217)
(470 007)
(555 598)
(23 582)
(5 257 233)
(203 944)
(46 950 201)

95 309 492

93 874 772

56 023 000
5 257 233
32 594 539

1 434 720

56 695
1 378 025

2020
Restated*

6 918 939
(52 925)
-

(57 508 715)

(36 081 116)
(874 126)
(409 792)
(402)
(3 103 712)
(194 978)
(16 844 589)

64 427 654

Total revenue
Expenditure
Personnel costs
Board expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments loss
Finance costs
Lease rental (operating lease)-service in kind
Repairs and maintenance
General Expenses

64 087 484

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions

340 170

340 170

2021

51 413 000
3 103 712
9 570 772
12

13

Note(s)

Transfer revenue
Government grants
Other revenue -service in kind
Conditional grant-Marketing

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Total revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income
Interest received

Revenue

Figures in Rand

Statement of Financial Performance
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7 018 295
(21 331 975)
11 487 713
6 866 014
(6 707 887)

(33 722)
(33 722)
303 496
(33 722)
(33 722)
269 774
7

Total changes
Restated* Balance at 01 April 2020
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the period
Realisation of revaluation reserve
Transfer to Provincial Revenue Fund
Total changes
Balance at 31 March 2021
Note(s)

11 645 840

158 127

(14 313 680)

25 801 393

Accumulated
surplus

337 218

Revaluation
reserve

Balance at 01 April 2019
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year
Realisation of revaluation reserve
Transfer to provincial Revenue Fund

Figures in Rand

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
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11 915 614

124 405

6 866 014
(33 722)
(6 707 887)

11 791 209

(14 347 402)

7 018 295
(33 722)
(21 331 975)

26 138 611

Total net
assets

92

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2021

15 317 975

3 302 275
12 015 700

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

(1 203 775)

7 104 511

12 015 700

(13 093 134)
25 108 834

(1 904 625)

(243 393)

(10 945 116)

(59 650 849) (103 310 850)

(34 574 144)
(47 014 516)
(460 809)
(21 261 381)

92 365 734

66 755 360

(34 398 587)
(17 548 524)
(402)
(883 912)
(6 819 424)

91 216 000
1 378 025
(228 291)

2020
Restated*

66 413 000
340 170
2 190

2021

(2 598 461)

6

3

20

Note(s)

Unspent grant surrendered

Cash flows from financing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance cost
Board expenses
Payments to Provincial Treasury

Receipts
Grants
Interest income
Other receipts

Cash flows from operating activities

Figures in Rand

Cash Flow Statement
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Approved
budget

96 193 000
(44 278 000)
(582 201)
(4 484 700)
(13 997 099)
(30 000 000)
(93 342 000)
2 851 000
2 851 000

Total revenue
Expenditure
Personnel costs
Board fees
Repairs and maintenance
General expenses
Conditional grant-IDM
Total expenditure
Operating surplus
Surplus for the year

(2 851 000)
(2 851 000)

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total Assets

Assets

Statement of Financial Position

96 193 000

66 193 000
30 000 000

-

Total revenue from nonexchange transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants
Conditional grant -Marketing

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Revenue from exchange
transactions
Interest received

Revenue

Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand

Budget on Cash Basis

-

(855 000)

(855 000)

855 000

855 000

30 635 000

8 780 000
(300 000)
4 114 700
3 040 300
15 000 000

(29 780 000)

(29 780 000)

(14 780 000)
(15 000 000)

Adjustments

(3 706 000)

(3 706 000)

3 706 000

3 706 000

(62 707 000)

(35 498 000)
(882 201)
(370 000)
(10 956 799)
(15 000 000)

66 413 000

66 413 000

51 413 000
15 000 000

-

(1 203 775)

(1 203 775)

14 488 602

14 488 602

(52 264 568)

(34 350 474)
(874 126)
(194 978)
(7 274 218)
(9 570 772)

66 753 170

66 413 000

51 413 000
15 000 000

340 170

2 502 225

2 502 225

10 782 602

10 782 602

10 442 432

1 147 526
8 075
175 022
3 682 581
5 429 228

340 170

-

-

340 170

Final Budget Actual amounts Difference
on comparable between final
basis
budget and
actual

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
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32.5

32.2
32.3
32.4

32.1

Reference
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Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

Note(s)

2021

2020

Employee benefits were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional
disclosure of these estimates of employee benefits are included in note 9 - Employee benefits.

Employee benefits

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of valuein-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is
reasonably possible that the assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material
adjustment to the carrying value of tangible assets.

Impairment testing

The carrying value of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The short term receivables
and payables are not discounted.

Fair value estimation

The impairment for trade receivables, loans and other receivables is calculated on an individual basis, based on historical loss
events, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that
correlate with defaults on the trade receivable.

The entity assesses its trade receivable, loans and other receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In
determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, management makes judgements as to
whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence the decisions or
assessments of users made on the basis of the financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission
or misstatement judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the information item, or a combination of both,
could be the determining factor.

1.3 Materiality

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as
a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.2 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the entity.

1.1 Presentation currency

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed below.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

1.

Figures in Rand

Accounting Policies
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Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Leasehold property is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment except for leasehold property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and

the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

For accounts receivable, an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is
impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Allowance for doubtful debts

1.4 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
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Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line

Communication equipment
Leasehold property
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Mobile offices and containers

5-8 years
10-20 years
5-15 years
5-10 years
5-12 years
5-8 years
10-15 years

Average useful life

Class
Receivales from exchange transactions
Payables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalent

`

Category
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial assets and financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of
the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Classification

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

1.6 Financial instruments

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the entity. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting date
and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a
change in an accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Depreciation method

Item

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

Leasehold improvements are written off over the expected period of the relevant lease agreement or the useful life of the asset
if it is shorter than the lease period.

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is derecognised.

Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current period.
The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

1.7 Leases

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.

Presentation

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what the
transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating
considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the
instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market
transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies
as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price
and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the
valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data.

Fair value measurement considerations

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, are subject to an impairment review.

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:

Financial instruments at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial recognition

1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
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The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

Identification

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

The expenses are recognised when goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write down of
inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write down or loss occur. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from increase in net
realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories arising from an
increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the entity.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;

distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or

consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

1.8 Inventories

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

Operating leases - lessee

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Finance leases - lessee

1.7 Leases (continued)
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After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

Recognition and measurement

The present value of the remaining service potential of the asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining
service potential of the asset before impairment, to conform to the reduced number of service units expected from the asset in
its impaired state. The current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment is determined as
the depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower.

Service units approach

Restoration cost is the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to its pre-impaired level. The present value of the
remaining service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration cost of the asset from the
current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is determined as the
depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower.

Restoration cost approach

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the entity
would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an overdesigned or
overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services the asset provides.
Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to meet the demand for goods or services the
asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an optimised basis thus reflects
the service potential required of the asset.

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated
replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset’s gross service potential. This
cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication)
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as
the current reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the
basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following
approach:

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.

Value in use

1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)
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The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

wages, salaries and social security contributions;

short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and

non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.

1.10 Employee benefits

The redesignation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash-generating asset or from a non-cash-generating asset
to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate.

Redesignation

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset
is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods.

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods
for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates
the recoverable service amount of that asset.

Reversal of an impairment loss

1.9 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)
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Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:

Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and

Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outflow of cash.

1.12 Commitments

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 22.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.

The amount of a contingency is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Contingencies are recognised when:

the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and

a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

1.11 Contingencies

Long service award obligation are measured on a basis that reflects:

estimated future salary increases;

the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those
terms) at the reporting date; and

estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit
plan, if, and only if, either:

those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or

past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable manner,
for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary levels.

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are to
be settled.

Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.

Actuarial assumptions

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits
for one or more employees.

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of
employment.

Post-employment benefits

1.10 Employee benefits (continued)
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As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of
revenue equal to that reduction.

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

Recognition

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
significant act is executed.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Sale of goods

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions
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Where irregular expenditure that was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial
year, the irregular expenditure register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount
condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year for which condonement is being awaited
at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is also required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was condoned before year
end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure
register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial
statements.

National Treasury practice notice no. 4 of 2008/09 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from April 2008):

b) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

a) the State Tender Board Act, 1988 (Act No. 86 of 1988) or any requlation made in terms of the Act or

1.16 Irregular expenditure

All expenditures relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for in the statement of financial performance.

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

1.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Where services in-kind are not significant to the entity’s operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or do not satisfy the
criteria for recognition, the entity disclose the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the entity recognise services in-kind that are significant to its operations and/or service
delivery objectives as assets and recognise the related revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service
potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Services in-kind

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

The entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy
the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the
transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transfers

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the
amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

Measurement

1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
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The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot
be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once
the event occurred.

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and

those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).

1.19 Events after reporting date

Only transactions with related parties not at arm's length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by that person in their dealings with the entity.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those
charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such
functions.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over
those policies.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly and indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only
entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

1.18 Related parties

The annual financial statements and the budget are not prepared on the same basis of accounting. The actual financial
statement information is therefore presented on comparable basis to the budget information. The comparison and the
reconciliation between the statement of financial performance and the budget for the reporting period have been included in
the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

General purpose financial reporting by the entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

Entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is
given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

1.17 Budget information

The irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme
expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular
expenditure register.

1.16 Irregular expenditure (continued)
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New standards and interpretations

2021

2020



GRAP 104 (amended): Financial Instruments

Standard/ Interpretation:

Effective date:
Years beginning on or
after
01 April 2099

Unlikely there will be a
material impact

Expected impact:

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2021 or later periods:

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

2.

Figures in Rand

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand
3.

Property, plant and equipment
2021
Cost /
Valuation

2020

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Leasehold property
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Mobile office and containers
Leasehold improvement-Work in Progress (WIP)
Communication equipment

2 710 909
2 331 867
361 419
632 552
2 268 776
34 555
189 070

(1 373 238)
(1 632 454)
(203 177)
(428 338)
(1 483 175)
(34 554)
(80 614)

1 337 671
699 413
158 242
204 214
785 601
1
108 456

2 954 475
2 341 136
361 419
650 450
2 042 912
114 754
106 222
148 762

(2 479 473)
(1 538 317)
(172 456)
(398 252)
(1 400 962)
(114 753)
(63 379)

475 002
802 819
188 963
252 198
641 950
1
106 222
85 383

Total

8 529 148

(5 235 550)

3 293 598

8 720 130

(6 167 592)

2 552 538
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Figures in Rand
3.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2021
Opening
balance

Leasehold improvement
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Mobile office and containers
Work in Progress-lease improvement
Communication equipment

107

Additions

475 002
802 819
188 963
252 198
641 950
1
106 222
85 383

824 469
338 999
40 307

2 552 538

1 203 775

Work in
Scrapping/wri Depreciation
Progress
te off
capitalised to
lease
improvement
106 222
(68 022)
(1 964)
(101 442)
(30 721)
(2 134)
(45 850)
(48 825)
(146 523)
(106 222)
(17 234)
-

(52 923)

(409 792)

Total

1 337 671
699 413
158 242
204 214
785 601
1
108 456
3 293 598
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand
3.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020
Opening
balance
Leasehold improvement
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
IT equipment
Mobile offices and containers
Work In Progress-lease improvement
Communication equipment

Additions

543 023
924 196
219 683
492 877
834 831
14 656
66 223

12 450
9 374
82 995
32 352

3 095 489

137 171

108

Work in
Progress
(WIP)

Write
Depreciation
offs/scrapping

Impairment
loss

Total

106 222
-

(4 763)
(168 389)
(34 012)
-

(68 021)
(122 203)
(30 720)
(81 050)
(235 027)
(5 385)
(13 192)

(6 861)
(614)
(6 837)
(9 270)
-

475 002
802 819
188 963
252 198
641 950
1
106 222
85 383

106 222

(207 164)

(555 598)

(23 582)

2 552 538
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

1 337 671

2021

475 002

2020

Inventories

Receivables
3 008 423
19 922
156 098
(3 792)
3 180 651

3 103 572

131 112

110 413

3 008 423
22 112
76 829
(3 792)

103 721
100 188
(72 797)

131 112

131 112
12 400
(33 099)

110 413

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference
to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates:

Credit quality of trade and other receivables

Receivables
Other receivables
Study assistance
Allowance for doubtful debt

5.

Opening balance
Adjustment during the year
Inventories expensed during the year

4.1 Reconciliation-Inventory-Consumable stores

Consumable stores

4.

The entity further entered into a free lease agreement with Department of Public Works effect from October 2018. The service
in kind is considered in line with GRAP 23, section 6.4 which states that an entity shall recognise services in kind that are
significant to its operations and/or service delivery objectives. Refer to note 12.

The entity entered into a lease agreement with both Mopani and Makhado municipalities for a period of 99 years with an annual
rental of R1.00. The Office building at Makhado was refurbished during 2020/21 financial year and a handover certificate has
been presented to management on 25 March 2021. The total cost related to the refurbishment has been capitalised as
leasehold improvement with effect from the date of handover. The entity has writen off the office building and patio for Mopani
regional office. The building was since burnt to ashes in 2018 and no indication that the municipality will rebuild the office. The
municipality indicated challenges of funds and requested LTA to rebuild the office.

Rental leases (Head Office, Mopani and Vhembe VICs)

Leasehold improvements

Assets subject to operating lease (Net carrying amount)

3.

Figures in Rand

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Limpopo Tourism Agency

110

Receivables (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Revaluation reserve
337 218
(33 722)
303 496

269 774

12 015 700

15 317 975

303 496
(33 722)

924
12 014 776

3 180 651

3 103 572

947
15 317 028

172 228

95 149

3 008 423

3 792

3 792

3 008 423

3 792

2020

3 792
-

2021

Unspent conditional grants and receipts

1 904 625
35 193 000
(1 904 625)
(32 594 539)
2 598 461

5 429 228

2 598 461

2 598 461
15 000 000
(2 598 461)
(9 570 772)

5 429 228

Unspent grant is surrendered to the Provincial Treasury through Limpopo Department of Economic Development Environment
and Tourism (LEDET).

The grant is ring-fenced for integrated destination marketing of the Limpopo Province both, local and international. The grant is
initially recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position and subsequently as revenue in the statement of financial
performance.

Balance at the beginning of the year
Grant received during the year
Less unspent grant surrendered to Provincial Treasury
Income recognised for the period

Movement during the year

Unspent conditional grant
Unspent grant - Marketing

Conditional grant marketing comprises of:

Conditional grant is a marketing grant received for integrated marketing of the province as a tourism destination.

8.

The revaluation surplus relates to the valuation of leasehold properties during 2018/19 financial year. No revaluation was
conducted during the financial year under review. Refer to note 3.

Revaluation surplus at beginning of the period
Movement in the reserve during year

7.

Cash on hand
Bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

6.

Ageing of receivables from exchange transactions
Current

Ageing of receivables from non-exchange transactions
120 days and above

Opening balance
Amounts provided as uncollectable

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

5.
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Employee benefits-Long service awards

281 118

Opening
Balance

286 581

Opening
Balance

44 917

Additions

84 897

Additions

268 431
18 150
286 581

341 000

286 581

Total

341 000

Total

2020

341 000
-

Utilised
during the
year
(39 454)

Utilised
during the
year
(30 478)

2021

Demographic assumptions are required about the future characteristics of current employees who are eligible for Long Service
Awards.

2. Demographic Assumptions

This assumption is required to reflect the estimated growth in the award value. The expected CPI inflation assumption of 4.43
percent was obtained from the differential between market yields on index-linked bonds (2.98 percent) consistent with the
estimated terms of the liabilities and those of nominal bonds (8.04 percent) with a risk of premium adjustment for uncertainty
implicit in guarateeing real increases (0.50 percent).
Therefore, expected inflation is determined as ((1+8.04%-0.50%)/(1+2.98%))-1. The assumption reflects a net discount rate of
3.46 percent.

b) CPI Inflation Rate

The first step in the derivation of this yield on long service awards is to calculate the liability weighted average of this yield
corresponding to the actual terms until payment for each employee.

The discount rate of 8.04 percent for long service awards and 10.76 percent for capped leave accruals has been used.

a) Discount rate

1) Financial assumptions

The key assumptions are detailed below as follows:

Key assumptions

For each employee, this projection is based on the probability of being employed at each service award date, taking into
account the assumed rates of withdrawal, early retirement and death.

The projected Unit Credit Method has been used to determine the present value of the long service awards liability and the
related current service cost and interest.

Methodology

The long service awards represent estimates of the entity's liability as valued by professional valuers annually. The entity
values long service awards using a professional valuer. ARCH Actuarial Consulting has been appointed to estimate the present
value of long service awards and leave accruals in the financial year under review. The liabilities are classified between current
and Non-current liabilities and are accounted as such in the statement of financial position.

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Employee benefit- long service

Reconciliation of employee benefits-long service awards - 2020

Employee benefit- long service awards

Reconciliation of employee benefits-long service awards - 2021
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Employee benefits-Long service awards (continued)

2021

2020

6.78%
3.46%
3.73%

Salary Inflation
Net Discount Rate
Net Discount Rate-(Leave Accruals)

65

65

69.21% of SA85-90 light.

4.01%

3.91%

8.85%

5.93%

11.11%

31 March 2020

Withdrawal rates

Average retirement

302 000
364 000

x50%

321 000

-2 yrs
x200%

373 000

366 000

-1%
+2 yrs

319 000

+1%

320 000

-1%
Discount rate

364 000

+1%

CPI inflation rate

Liability
341 000

Change
Central assumptions

Assumption

1. Sensitivity Analysis on the Unfunded Accrued Liability

-7%

-11%

-6%

9%

7%

-6%

-6%

7%

% Change

The tabe below indicates, for example, that if CPI inflation is one percentage point greater than the long term assumption
made, the liability will be 7 percent higher than the accrued liability.

Sensitivity analysis

Normal retirement age

70% of SA85-90 light

4.43%

Consumer Price Index (CPI)

Mortality

8.04%

Discount rate

31 March 2021

The key assumptions used in the valuation, with prior years assumptions shown for comparison are summurised below:

As mentioned in the paragraphs above, the liability weighted average term of total liability is 7.32 years, however, it is the
relative levels of the discount rate and salary inflation to one another that is important, rather than the nominal values.

70 percent of SA 85-90 (light), adjusted for female lives.

b) Pre-Retirement Mortality

The normal retirement age of employees is 65 years. It has been assumed that employees will retire at the age of 65 on
average, which thus assumes that expected rates ill-health and early retirement are nil.

a) Average Retirement Age

The discount rate determined by using the Bond Exchange Zero Coupon Yield Curve as at 31 March 2021 is 8.04% as
compared to 11.11% of 2020 financial year.
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Employee benefits-Long service awards (continued)

61 162

x50%

-6%

-5%

-7%

7%

% Change

2021

2020

286,581
57,586
6,992

Opening net liability 1 April 2020
Expense (Service and interest cost)
Acturial gain/(loss)

341,000

286,581

Closing accrued liability

Closing accrued liability

(18,150)

Expected benefit payments

(10,159)

23,613

Net periodic cost recognised in profit/(loss)

Expected benefit payments

(29,443)

Acturial gain/(loss)

64,578

53,056

Expense (Service and interest cost)

Net periodic cost recognised in profit/(loss)

281, 118

Long Service Awards
Opening net liability 1 April 2019

Financial Results:

653,000

(53,087)

(571,910)

(737,227)

165,317

1,277,997

1,277,997

(50,384)

(12,735)

(131,431)

118,696

1,341,116

Leave Accruals

Once any long-term impacts of COVID-19 on the various valuation parameters becomes more evident, appropriate
adjustments to the parameters will be feasible. In the meanwhile, any short-term impacts of actual experience being different to
the current long-term assumptions will contribute to actuarial gain/loss items.

The sensitivity on the table above may be used to understand the potential impact on the liability (and expenses) of, for
example, an increase in the expected CPI inflation rate, or an increase in the discount rate, or an increase in the withdrawal
rates.

It is difficult to estimate what effect the pandemic is likely to have on LTA's Liability at this stage. There is still much
uncertainity as to how it will affect mortality in the medium to long term, and what effect treatments and/or vaccines will have.

Impact of COVID-19

54 423

x150%

53 734

-1%
Withdrawal rates

61 820

+1%

CPI inflation rate

Total Cost
57 586

Change

Central assumptions

Assumption

2. Table Sensetivity Analysis on Total Cost for the year ending 31 March 2021
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139 475

2 717 337

4 896 295

176 358

1 997 447
23 374
635 896
50 384
450
9 786

2020

1 603 502
24 565
587 043
2 330 090
351 095
-

2021

Transfer revenue
Government grant and subsidies
Revenue-Service in kind
Conditional grant-Marketing

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services
are as follows:
Other income
Interest received

Other income
Interest received
Government grants & subsidies
Revenue-Service in kind
Grant Marketing-Conditional

12. Revenue

Opening balance
Revenue collected
Revenue transferred to Provincial Revenue fund

Revenue collected on behalf of Department

56 023 000
5 257 233
32 594 539
93 874 772

64 087 484

1 434 720

340 170

51 413 000
3 103 712
9 570 772

56 695
1 378 025

95 309 492

64 427 654

340 170

56 695
1 378 025
56 023 000
5 257 233
32 594 539

139 475

176 358

340 170
51 413 000
3 103 712
9 570 772

12 984
1 572 287
(1 445 796)

139 475
488 742
(451 859)

Revenue payable to Provincial Revenue Fund is an amount the entity collected from recoveries, rental (MTN`) and interest
received from the bank. The table below illustrates the reconciliation of revenue collected and paid out to the Provincial
Treasury.

Revenue payable

11. Revenue payable to Provincial Revenue Fund

Trade payables
Staff S&T Control Account
Accrued-13th Cheque
Leave accrual
Accrued -Provident Fund
Accrued -Garnishee & other loan control account
Board Payments Control Account

10. Payables from exchange transactions
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2021

2020

Interest revenue
Bank

13. Interest received
340 170

1 378 025

The entity used the average office rental rate for commercial properties around Polokwane as a basis to determine the value of
service in kind.

Grap 23, section 6.4 states that an entity shall recognise service in kind that are significant to its operations and/or service
delivery objectives. For example, when an entity receives service in kind that are integral to its operations such as office
accomodation paid on its behalf. It should recognise those services in kind if they meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the
criteria for recognition as an asset and shall recognise the related service.

The entity receives service in kind from Deprtment of Public Works in the form of a free rental office accomodation. The service
in kind is considered as significant to the operations of the entity and service delivery objectives.

Nature and type of services in-kind are as follows:

12. Revenue (continued)
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Board fees
Cell phone allowances

15. Board members fees

Annual Remuneration
Allowances
13th Cheques
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Acting allowance

Remuneration of Executive Managers

Annual Remuneration
Allowances
13th Cheques
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Leave gratuity
Acting allowance

Remuneration of Chief Finance Officer

Annual Remuneration
Allowances
13th Cheques
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Leave gratuity
Acting allowance

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer

Basic salary
Medical aid - company contributions
UIF
WCA
SDL
Leave provision charge
Provident fund contribution
Long-service awards
13th cheque
Housing benefits and other allowances
Internship stipend

14. Employee related costs
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470 007

874 126

34 625 217

36 081 116

470 007
-

3 404 905

4 172 906

870 076
4 050

2 771 431
231 800
146 511
199 675
55 488

1 355 725

231 120

3 334 842
391 800
208 378
237 886
-

925 316
300 000
67 697
62 712
-

1 732 103

1 236 537

15 620
22 566
297
119 753
72 884

1 445 938
120 000
86 516
79 649
-

28 132 484

30 440 553

843 464
70 000
79 306
46 611
133 081
64 075

21 912 309
811 978
83 388
113 085
106 952
(56 655)
2 209 929
44 917
1 640 350
1 266 231
-

2020

22 028 687
855 568
87 847
160 224
106 494
1 676 223
2 305 274
84 897
1 501 868
1 268 431
365 040

2021
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Internal audit fees
External audit fees

19. Auditors' remuneration

Advertising
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Cleaning expenses
Computer expenses
Consulting and professional fees
Supplies and consumables
Insurance
Accommodation, conferences and workshops
Fleet management
Marketing research, trade shows and events
Marketing campaigns and branding
Recruitment cost
Postage and courier
Printing and stationery
Security costs
Staff welfare expenses
Subscriptions and membership fees
Telephone and fax expenses
Staff training expenses
Subsistence & travel expenses
Electricity expense
Staff uniform
Entrepreneur support & tourism services
Study assistance
Employee wellness
Public relations and communications

18. General expenses

Interest paid

17. Finance cost

Impairments
Property, plant and equipment
During asset verification process, management performed an assessment to
determine whether there is any indication that the assets need to be impaired.No
assets were identified for impairment during the asset verification process.

16. Impairment of assets
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847 240
2 069 963
2 917 203

534 106
2 035 364
2 569 470

46 950 201

16 844 589

-

23 582

2 917 203
53 655
423 421
415 566
140 780
79 977
217 766
909 808
104 265
9 740 333
25 220 666
110 559
2 933
612 493
1 571 345
26 114
228 726
1 253 169
121 429
1 261 454
507 619
10 123
53 265
67 398
119 283
780 851

402

-

2020

41 256
2 569 470
33 889
268 098
625 303
22 960
72 437
196 403
110 276
45 060
528 008
8 397 083
3 850
100
330 929
1 272 282
28 756
28 907
971 192
404 760
308 055
333 736
106 578
107 326
37 875

2021
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3 395 671

6 159 331

6 159 331

(10 945 116)

7 104 511

3 395 671

(27 391)
(49 259)
(235 726)
311 408
126 491

20 699
77 079
(676 392)
2 178 957
36 883

130 945
275 265
1 674 905
1 018 981
439 695
2 619 540

555 598
207 164
(21 365 697)
5 257 233
23 582
(113 505)
5 463
(5 257 233)
2 598 461

409 792
52 925
(6 741 610)
3 103 712
(603 483)
54 419
(3 103 712)
5 429 228

138 126
514 855
729 059
242 292
5 639
1 765 700

7 018 295

2020

6 866 014

2021

Details
Edmax
MTK Trading and Projects

The entity's contingent liabilities are disclosed individually as per the table below:

The matter is yet to be set down for hearing by applicants.

238 378
146 376
384 754

-

The entity has a relatively new labour related matter concerning 5 employees, Ms Mokgadi Reginah Ratlabala and 4 others ,
under case number JR 559/2020. The applicants have lodged a review application at labour court in Johannesburg, Gauteng
province, against the arbitration decision of the Commission of Conciliation, Mediation and Arbitration (i.e. CCMA) in
Polokwane. The dispute relates to a question of law and is not a claim sound in money.

The entity has resolved to close the files of both sevice providers (Edmax and MTK3 Trading and projects) because the
plaintiffs have failed to prosecute their cases. The two cases have been stagnant in the court for more than 4 years.

22. Contingencies

Total commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for

Not yet contracted for and authorised by members

Provision for hygiene

Security services

Provision for internal auditors

Design & construction of exhibition stand

Website development, design and hosting

Short term insurance

Vehicle tracking

Outstanding orders

Authorised operational expenditure

21. Commitments

Surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Write offs/scrapping of property, plant and equipment
Movement in retained income
Lease revenue-service in kind
Impairment deficit
Movements -leave liabilities-non-current
Movements -employee benefits-long service awards
Lease expense-service in kind
Unspent conditional grant-marketing
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Receivables
Prepayments
Payables from exchange transactions
Movement in revenue payable to Provincial Revenue Fund

20. Cash (used in) generating from operations
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2020

3 008 423
5 429 228
176 358

Payables to Provincial Treasury
Unspent conditional grant
Payables to Provincial Revenue Fund

51 413 000
15 000 000
3 103 712

KA Dipela-(chairperson)
CA Chikane-(Deputy Chairperson)
MO Moganedi
MRM Mothapo-(Kgoshigadi)
RM Tseli
KC Touane
PF Mashimbye (Cllr)

2 598 461
139 475

3 008 423

56 023 000
35 193 000
5 257 233

NK Ramakuela-Acting Chief Executive Officer
MP Maila-Acting Chief Financial Officer
TP Maleka-Chief Corporate Services Officer.
Dr. M Musitha-Acting Chief Marketing Officer.

Limpopo Department of Economic Development
Environment and Tourism.

2021

Receivables from Limpopo Economic, Development, Environment and Tourism.
Receivable -LEDET

Government grant & subsidies
Conditional grant
Department of Public Works

Related party transactions

Board members

Members of key management

Relationships
Parent Department

`

23. Related parties
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149 252

273 893
156 720
109 989
115 252
96 803
752 657

Re-imbursive
allowance
49 886
33 401
18 101
18 283
11 783
131 454

63 216
55 391
47 528
47 528
39 624
15 065
268 352

Board fees

Reimbursement
allowance
78 817
47 019
6 335
9 105
2 033
5 943

Board fees

2021

399 806

113 102
88 792
65 629
65 811
51 407
15 065

Total

901 909

352 710
203 739
116 324
124 357
98 836
5 943

Total

2020

-

Statement of financial position
Reallocation-Accumulated depreciation-IT equipment
Cost- IT equipment
Work In Progress
Capital funds-revaluation reserve
Retained income
Statement of financial performance
General expenses (Professional fee) decreased

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

(106 222)

652 074
(652 074)
106 222
33 722
(33 722)

The word provisions as reported in the prior year ( statement of financial position, accounting policy 1.4 and note 9) has been
replaced by the word, Employee benefit as is in line with GRAP 25.125 (a).

Re-wording

Movement in the revaluation reserve was not accounted for in the prior year.

Professional fees related to the refurbishment of the Makhado office building was expensed instead of processed against Work
in Progress. The transaction is re-allocated accordingly by debiting Work in Progress and crediting professional fees.

Property, plant and equipment was incorrectly stated in the prior year. Accumulated depreciation ( IT equipment) was credited
instead of debited, while cost was debited instead of credited. Both accumulated depreciation and cost are correctly stated.

25. Prior period errors

KA Dipela (Chairperson)
CA Chikane (Deputy Chairperson)
MO Moganedi
RM Tseli
MRM Mothapo (Kgoshigadi)
PF Mashimbye (Cllr)

2020

KA Dipela (Chairperson)
CA Chikane (Deputy Chairperson)
MO Moganedi
RM Tseli
MRM Mothapo (Kgoshigadi)
PF Mashimbye (Cllr)

2021

Board members

24. Board Members' fees
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-

Cash flow from investing activities
PPE-WIP increased

106 222

(106 222)

2020

Note

Note

Note

10 308 187

(1 304 146)

137 171

47 120 738

106 222

(106 222)

As previously
Rereported
classification

As previously Correction of
reported
error
47 056 423
(106 222)

(1 155 113)

As previously Correction of
Rereported
error
classification
2 053 035
(652 073)
2 694 986
(652 073)
337 218
(33 722)
106 222
1 277 997
(1 227 613)
1 227 613
3 944 951
(1 227 613)
-

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risks liquidity and credit risks.

Financial risk management

27. Risk management

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Cash flow from operating activities
Payment to suppliers

2020

Cash flow statement

General expenses

2020

Statement of financial performance

IT equipment-accumulated depreciation
IT equipment-Cost
Revaluation reserve
Work In Progress(WIP)-Lease improvement
Leave accruals-current
Leave liabilities-Non current
Payables from exchange transaction

2020

Statement of financial position

243 393

47 014 516

Restated

46 950 201

Restated

7 848 928

1 400 962
2 042 913
303 496
106 222
50 384
1 227 613
2 717 338

Restated

Presented below are those items contained in the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance and cash
flow statement that have been affected by prior-year adjustments:

26. Prior-year adjustments

-

2021

Cash flow from operating activities
Operating activities decreased

Cash flow statement

25. Prior period errors (continued)
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2021

2020

Trade and other payables
Revenue payable to Provincial Revenue Fund
Unspent conditional grant

Trade and other payables
Revenue payable to Provincial Revenue Fund
Unspent conditional grant
Long service awards

Less than 1
year
2 717 337
139 475
2 598 461
18 150

Less than 1
year
4 896 295
176 358
5 429 228

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 1
and 2 years

-

-

Between 2
and 5 years

Between 2
and 5 years

-

-

2021
15 317 975
3 103 572

2020
12 015 700
3 180 651

The Impact of COVID-19

The accounting authority remains confident that funds will be available to finance future operations of the entity, to such an
extend, the Limpopo Economic Development, Environment and Tourism has confirmed the funding for Limpopo Tourism
Agency for the foreseeable future and a letter to this effect has been received.

The entity has received a letter from Provincial Treasury regarding 2021/22 financial year budget cut. The cut resulted from the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The entity's budget has reduced by R34,691 million, from R101,388 million to R66,697
million. The cut comprises of R 9,091 million from compensation of employees and R25,600 million from goods and services.
Included in the goods and services cut is ring-fenced allocation amounting to R16,620 million.

28. Going concern

Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchange transactions

`

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at 12 months period as follows:

Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking
into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external
ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

-

Over 5 years

-

Over 5 years

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Credit risk





At 31 March 2020





At 31 March 2021

The table below analyses the entity’s liabilities which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amount disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared.

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk
through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

Liquidity risk

27. Risk management (continued)
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2021

2020

620 934

Closing balance

6 023
3 287
856
288
10 454

1 658
4 954
550
4 120
11 282

Interest on late payment

Write offs by Accounting Authority

402

-

After presentation of the investigation report, Risk and Audit Committee has supported management's recommendations to the
board for approval of write off to an amount of R 402 for 2020/21 financial year.

Amounts written-off

No show bookings for accomodations
Interest and penalties for late payments
Additional charge for missing flight
Rental car damage cost
Private use and late return of booked vehicle
Tracking report for rental car
None completion of e-learning programme by 2 SCM officials

After presentation of the investigation report, Risk and Audit Committee has supported management's recommendations for
approval by the board to recover an amount of R 11, 282 for 2020/21 financial year from the officials responsible for the
fruitless and wasteful expenditures.

Amounts recoverable

70 008
17 711
288
2 620
3 287
2 400
-

1 658
402
4 699
550
4 120
491 770
15 550
(88)
(7 631)
(553)
(402)

No show booking (Accomodation & car hire)
Cancellation of accomodation withot refund
Cost of repairs of car rental
Change booking fee
Interest/penalties on late payment
Travel Insurance -missed flight to Dubai
Private use of booked vehicle
Rental car tracking report
Non completion of e-learning programme by two SCM officials
Payment to employee not reported to work
Medical expenses-L Mango
Less amount recovered (2018/19)
Less amount recovered (2019/20)
Less amount recovered (2020/21)
Less amount written off

110 859

14 545

110 859

Opening balance as previously reported

29. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Plummeting the Province's number down on arrivals by tourists, the less the number of arrivals, the lower economic recovery of
the Province.

The COVID-19 outbreak impacted negatively on the operations of the entity and accross the tourism industry. Commitments in
support of economic and social activities are disrupted by the outbreak of the pandemic. The entity had revised its APP and
removed some of the important marketing events due to budget cut. The cut has far reaching implications in that, the mandate
of the entity will be adversely affected. The impact of the cut will mean that the brand presence of Limpopo will be affected and
that the entity's foot-print in the consumers mind will demish due to reduction of marketing events as a result of the budget cut.
The entity's ability to compete with its alike will be weakened.

28. Going concern (continued)
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2021

2020

5 393 710

1 027 429

3 215
(3 416 310)
(759 359)

4 366 281
-

1 221 256

5 393 710

3 215
-

47 310
6 800
609 359
3 270 000
2 850
4 402
15 000
158 760
251 800

3 215

4 366 281

30. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance as previously reported
Add: Irregular Expenditure -current
Less: Amount condoned - current
Less: prior period error incorrectly classified as irregular expenditure
Closing balance
Incidents/cases identified in the current year include those listed below:
PII Digital (Pty) Ltd
Tracker
Telkom
Cycling SA
Advances-Makgoebaskloof
Advances-groceries-ZCC Brassband
Advances -purchases of laptop for Mandela day
Babirwa travel agency
Image travel agency

Details of Irregular expenditure identified
Contract expired
Contract expired
Contract expired
None compliance with Income tax
Purchases over R 2000 without 3 quotations
Purchases over R 2000 without 3 quotations
Purchases over R 2000 without 3 quotations
None travel related services procured from tavel agency
None travel related services procured from travel agency
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2021

2020

-

150 000
609 359
99 000
47 310
3 270 000
4 175 669

7 104 511

(1 203 775)

(2 598 461)
3 302 275

Investing activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement
Financing activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement
Net cash generated from operating, investing and financing activities

14 488 602
(7 384 091)

Net cash flows from operating activities

Operating activities
Actual amount as presented in the budget statement
Basis differences

(13 093 135)

(1 904 625)

(243 393)

(10 945 117)

10 338 230
(21 283 347)

Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the net cash generated from operating, investing and financing activities:

31. Reconciliation between budget and cash flow statement

Macufe -2018 (Oxytone T/A PSS)-incorrectly disclosed as irregular expenditure in the prior year
PRI solution(Telkom) incorrectly disclosed as irregular expenditure in the prior year-2019/20
Media Logging Tourism Indaba (Oxytone T/A Koi-koi)-2018/19-condoned
Website Hosting and maintenance (PII Digital (Pty Ltd)-2019/20-condoned
Tour De Limpopo (Cycle SA)-2019/20 -condoned

The below table detailed the irregular expenditures that have been removed and condoned by the Provincial Treasury:

After the investigation report has been presented, the Provincial Treasury approved the removal of two expenditures (detailed
in the below table) which were incorrectly classified as irregular expenditure in the prior year. The total amount for removal is
R 759 359. The Provincial Treasury further condoned an amount of R 3 416 310 which were classified as irregular expenditure
in the prior years.

Amounts condoned/misclassified

30. Irregular expenditure (continued)
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2021

2020

The under expenditure of R2,502,225 which translates to 68% of the budget for payment of capital expenditure is due to delays
in the finalisation of the bid for procurement of three servers.The bid was deferred for future consideration pending
management consultation with Limpopo Connexion to verify the processes followed , cost effectiveness of acquring of the
servers and technical assurance regarding the skill in respect of installation and configuration of the servers.

5. Payment of capital expenditure

The under expenditure amounting to R5,429,228 which translates to 36% of the ring-fenced allocation is due to postponement
of some marketing events, such Limpopo championship, Meetings Africa, Convention Bureau, research project for 3 based
Limpopo based PSL Teams and None responsive bid for branding materials. The postponement of events was due to level 3
lockdown.

4. Integrated Destination Marketing

The under expenditure amounting to R3,682,581, which translates to 34% of general expenses budget is occassioned by late
submissions of request by divisions and lack of capacity within the SCM unit.

3.General expenditure

The under expenditure of R175,022 which translates to 47% of the total budget for repairs and maintenance is due to delays in
the procurement of services due to lack of capacity in the SCM unit.

2. Repairs and maintenance

The under expenditure of R 1,147 526 is due to two key positions, CEO and CFO, which were not filled and are currently filled
in acting capacity.

1. Personnel

The information below explains the material variances between final budget and actual amounts as presented in the statement
of comparison between the budget and actual amounts.

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

32. Budget differences
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